
 City of Black Hawk 

City Council 

211 Church Street 

February 26, 2014 

3:00 p.m. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 

2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

3.         AGENDA CHANGES: 

 

4. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  (Council disclosures are on file w/City Clerk & Sec. Of State) 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT: Please limit comments to 5 minutes 

 (Notify the City Clerk if you wish to address Council on items not on the agenda) 

 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  February 12, 2014 

             

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 A.  Resolution 10 - 2014, A Resolution Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for the Exterior 

  Rehabilitation of the Historic Outbuildings and Site Work for the Property at 101 Marchant  

  Street 

 B. Resolution 11 - 2014, A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for 

the Site Work, Landscape, and Construction of a new Greenhouse for the Property at 301 Chase Street 
  

8. ACTION ITEMS:  

 C.  271 Church Street – PEH Architect Scope of Work and Fee Schedule 

  D.  Resolution 12 - 2014, A Resolution Approving the Judges Selected to Serve for the Regular 

      Municipal Election in the City of Black Hawk on April 1, 2014 

 

9.      CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

 E. Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 2012 

 

10.     CITY ATTORNEY: 

 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

12.      ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the City of Black Hawk is to progressively provide cost effective programs and services of the 

highest quality to the community 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

FOR FEBRUARY 12, 2014 



 1 

City of Black Hawk 

City Council Minutes 

February 12, 2014 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER: The regular meeting of the City Council was called to order  

    by Mayor Spellman Wednesday, February 12, 2014 at 2:00 p.m. 

 

2.  ROLL CALL: Present were: Mayor Spellman, Aldermen Armbright, Bennett, 

Cales, Johnson, Moates, and Torres. 

  

 Staff present:  City Attorney Hoffmann, City Manager Lewis,  

City Clerk Magno, Community Planning and Development 

Administrator Linker, IT Director Young, IT Support Staff 

Muhammad, Assistant to City Manager for Administration 

Greiner, Fire Chief Taylor, Finance Director Hillis, Public Works 

Director Isbester, Water Coordinator Ford, and Police Chief Cole.  

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 MOTION TO 

 ADJOURN  Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman  

    Johnson to adjourn into Executive Session at 2:01 p.m.to hold a 

conference with the City’s attorney to receive legal advice on 

specific legal questions pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(b). 

 

 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 RECONVENE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Cales at 2:25 p.m. 

 

 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

WORK SESSION: Council viewed the video regarding renovation of the Church.  

Consensus of Council was that the videographer did a great job. 

 

    Mayor Spellman stated the video was not complete.  He explained 

Deputy Stevens found in the minutes of April 18, 1865; where the 

Council made a resolution to attend the funeral services of the 

Chief Magistrate, Abraham Lincoln.  Services were to be held 

April 19, 1865 at 10:30 a.m. at the Presbyterian Church.  This 

information will be added to the video. 

 

    Mayor Spellman stated a plaque would be ordered regarding the 

assassination of Lincoln. 

 

 

DRAFT 



 2 

      PLEDGE OF  

      ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Spellman led the meeting in the recitation of the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

3.  AGENDA CHANGES: City Clerk Magno informed Council item 7-D, Resolution 2-2014, 

A Resolution Approving the Comprehensive Sign Plan and 

Conditionally Approving a Certificate of appropriateness for the Z 

Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan has been moved to be heard as 

the first Public Hearing. 

 

4.  CONFLICTS OF  

 INTEREST: City Attorney Hoffmann asked Council to declare any Conflicts of 

Interest on any issue appearing on the agenda this afternoon other 

than those previous disclosures and conflicts that have already 

been disclosed and are on file with the City Clerk and Secretary of 

State.  Council declared no conflicts. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann asked the audience if there were any  

objections to any member of Council voting on any issue on the  

agenda this afternoon.  The audience had no objections.   

  

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  No one came forward to address Council. 

 

6. APPROVAL OF 

     MINUTES for 

    January 22, 2014 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Torres to approve the Minutes of the January 22, 2014 meeting as 

presented. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

A. Resolution 2-2014, 

 A Resolution Approving 

 the Comprehensive 

 Sign Plan and 

 Conditionally Approving 

 a Certificate of 

 Appropriateness for 

 the Z Casino  

 Comprehensive  

 Sign Plan Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 



 3 

  Vince Harris, Baseline, explained the resolution is for a certificate 

of appropriateness for Z’s casino, which is Bullwhackers.  This 

resolution will amend the license agreement for electronic signs. 

 

  Mr. Harris stated Staff recommends approval with five conditions.  

 

 PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on Resolution 2-2014, 

A Resolution Approving the Comprehensive Sign Plan and 

Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for the Z 

Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan open and invited anyone wanting 

to address the Board either “for” or “against” the proposed 

resolution to come forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve Resolution 2-2014, A Resolution Approving 

the Comprehensive Sign Plan and Conditionally Approving a 

Certificate of Appropriateness for the Z Casino Comprehensive 

Sign Plan with five conditions recommended by Staff. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.  

 

 B. CB 3, An Ordinance 

  to Adopt the Black  

  Hawk Employee 

  Handbook Dated 

  February 2014 Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann explained this ordinance, if adopted, 

would repeal and adopt a new employee handbook.  He stated one 

overwhelming change was this handbook was sent to all 

employees.  If they had any questions they could address those to 

Assistant to City Manager for Administration Greiner or appear 

before Council. 

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann stated the change is from “For Cause” 

employment to “At Will”.  He explained the State of Colorado is 

an “At Will” state and this would bring the City into compliance. 

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann explained at this time, Administrator 

Greiner has not received any questions from employees regarding 

the handbook.   

 



 4 

   City Manager Lewis stated it has been quite an undertaking.  He 

explained Management Team was still going over the handbook 

this morning. 

 

   City Manager Lewis explained under job announcements, the draft 

states internal candidates can apply at the same time as opening to 

everyone.  Management Team recommends opening to internal 

candidates for a time before opening to everyone.   

 

   City Manager Lewis explained sick leave bank is still being 

discussed and will go by what is in the handbook until further 

notice. 

 

   City Manager Lewis explained with all the new technology, how 

will the City address e-cigarettes.  Management Team recommends 

treating e-cigarettes just like any other tobacco product.    

 

   City Manager Lewis stated the Employee Status review is blank 

for it needs to be reviewed.  

 

   Mayor Spellman stated with the Employee Status review the 

employee will either get the bonus or not.  City Manager Lewis 

stated yes and there will not be any scoring.   

    

 PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on CB 3, An 

Ordinance to Adopt the Black Hawk Employee Handbook Dated 

February 2014 open and invited anyone wanting to address the 

Board either “for” or “against” the proposed ordinance to come 

forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

Alderman Torres stated he would like an amendment to Section 

304 Holidays.  Would like Columbus Day eliminated as a holiday 

and implement the employee’s birthday instead. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann explained if Council wishes to approve 

the three amendments to be included, they are; practice in job 

announcements, e-cigarettes, and substitute employee’s birthday in 

place of Columbus Day for holidays. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Torres MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman to 

Bennett approve CB 3, An Ordinance to Adopt the Black Hawk 

Employee Handbook Dated February 2014 with the following 



 5 

amendments:  practice in job announcements, e-cigarettes, and 

substitute employee’s birthday in place of Columbus Day. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.  

 

C. CB 4, An Ordinance 

 Repealing and 

 Reenacting Chapter 15 

 of the Black Hawk 

 Municipal Code 

 Adopting a New 

 Black Hawk 

 Sign Code Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

  Vince Harris, Baseline, gave some back ground for the proposed 

sign code.   

 

  City Attorney Hoffmann clarified that non-compliant signs are the 

temporary signs, not signage already approved by Council. 

 

 PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on CB 4, An 

Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting Chapter 15 of the Black 

Hawk Municipal Code Adopting a New Black Hawk Sign Code 

open and invited anyone wanting to address the Board either “for” 

or “against” the proposed ordinance to come forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by 

Alderman Cales to approve CB 4, An Ordinance Repealing and 

Reenacting Chapter 15 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code 

Adopting a New Black Hawk Sign Code. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.  

 

D. CB 5, An Ordinance 

 Submitting Ballot 

 Questions for an  

 April 1, 2014 Regular 

 Municipal Election,  

 and Setting the 

 Ballot Titles  

 Thereof Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 



 6 

  City Attorney Hoffmann explained the City has its regular 

municipal election in April.  It is an opportunity for Council to 

have a TABOR Notice.   

 

  City Attorney Hoffmann explained the first ballot question would 

impose a 5% sales tax on all retail marijuana and medical 

marijuana as well as products for either.  The revenue estimate is 

$100,000.  Second question relates to Monarch Casino 

reimbursement of 4% sales tax not to exceed $2.7 million. 

 

  City Attorney Hoffmann stated since this is for multiple years.  

The voters can authorize for Monarch to receive money back from 

lodging. 

 

 PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on CB 5, An 

Ordinance Submitting Ballot Questions for an April 1, 2014 

Regular Municipal Election, and Setting the Ballot Titles Thereof 

open and invited anyone wanting to address the Board either “for” 

or “against” the proposed ordinance to come forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Torres MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to approve CB 5, An Ordinance Submitting Ballot 

Questions for an April 1, 2014 Regular Municipal Election, and 

Setting the Ballot Titles Thereof. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.  

 

8.  ACTION ITEMS: 

 E. 201 Church Street 

  Amend Scope of 

  Work and PEH 

  Architectural Fee Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Community Planning and Development Administrator Linker 

explained this is a request to amend scope of work and additions to 

the architectural fees for the new IT facilities. 

 

Administrator Linker stated the design has a basement for all the 

mechanical equipment; first floor for servers, restroom, kitchen, 

and office; and second floor an office. 

 

 MOTION TO 



 7 

 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Johnson 

to approve 201 Church Street – Amend Scope of Work and PEH 

Architectural Fee. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 F. 231 Horn Street 

  and 301 Chase 

  Street – Preservation 

  Easement Change 

  Orders   Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Bryan Carruthers, Consilium, went over the change order for 301 

Chase Street.   

 

Mr. Carruthers explained Staff was working with Big Valley 

regarding the cost for the change order.  He stated the cost would 

probably come down.  

 

City Attorney Hoffmann stated Council could approve with “not to 

exceed”. 

 

Alderman Cales inquired why the foundation was not discovered 

with the initial discovery.  Mr. Carruthers explained initially the 

contractors felt they could hit bedrock at 4 feet like the rest of the 

house; however, that corner they had to go down 14 feet. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Bennett to approve 301 Chase Street – Preservation Easement Change 

Orders. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

  Mr. Carruthers explained for 231 Horn Street the contractor had to 

go down farther to find bedrock and there were a lot more utilities 

in the street than first figured. 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Moates MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to approve 231 Horn Street – Preservation Easement Change 

Orders. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 G. Resolution 3, 2014, A 

  Resolution Establishing 



 8 

  a Contingency on 

  Grant Projects Under 

  the Community 

  Restoration and 

  Preservation Fund 

  Grant Program to 

  be Managed at the 

  City Manager’s 

  Discretion Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann explained Council had previously passed 

a resolution giving the city manager the ability to manage a 

contingency on all City projects.  The Grant Program was an 

oversight and should have been included.   

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Torres to 

approve Resolution 3-2014, A Resolution Establishing a Contingency on 

Grant Projects Under the Community Restoration and Preservation Fund 

Grant Program to be Managed at the City Manager’s Discretion. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 H. Resolution 4-2014, 

  A Resolution  

  Rescinding Sales 

  Tax Rebate to 

  Small Businesses Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann explained this resolution, if adopted, 

would appeal Resolution 2010-7 where the City rebated the City’s 

4% sales tax for certain categories of retail businesses.  However, 

the effective date is April 1, 2014, where it would rescind all sales 

tax to non-gaming businesses.  

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann stated Council requested the effective 

date to be April 1, 2014 so more of a hardship would not be put on 

the convenience store. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Cales to approve Resolution 4-2014, A Resolution Rescinding Sales Tax 

Rebate to Small Businesses. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 



 9 

I. Resolution 5-2014, 

 A Resolution 

 Rescinding Water 

 Rebate to Small 

 Businesses  Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann explained this was similar to the sales tax 

rebate.  The effective date would be April 1, 2014 so the 

convenience store would not have more hardships. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman to 

Torres to approve Resolution 5-2014, A Resolution Rescinding Water 

Rebate to Small Businesses. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 J. Resolution 6-2014, 

  A Resolution 

  Approving the 

  Agreement of 

  Lease Between the 

  City of Black Hawk 

  as Lessor and the 

  Gilpin Ambulance 

  Authority as 

  Lessee Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann explained, if adopted, this would 

authorize a lease to Gilpin Ambulance Authority for 430 Gregory 

Street. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Bennett 

to Resolution 6-2014, A Resolution Approving the Agreement of Lease 

Between the City of Black Hawk as Lessor and the Gilpin Ambulance 

Authority as Lessee. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 K. Resolution 7-2014, 

  A Resolution  

  Reappointing 

  Ronald W. Carlson 

  to be the City of 

  Black Hawk 



 10 

  Municipal Court 

  Judge Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to approve Resolution 7-2014, A Resolution Reappointing 

Ronald W. Carlson to be the City of Black Hawk Municipal Court 

Judge. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 L. Resolution 8-2014, 

  A Resolution 

  Reappointing Thad 

  Renaud to be the 

  City of Black Hawk 

  Assistant Municipal 

  Court Judge Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

   

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve Resolution 8-2014, A Resolution Reappointing 

Thad Renaud to be the City of Black Hawk Assistant Municipal Court 

Judge. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 M. On Call Service 

  Agreements for 

  2014 Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Johnson 

to approve the On Call Service Agreements for 2014. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 N. Highway 119 

  Waterline 

  Project – Design 

  Engineering 

  Services Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

   Water Coordinator Ford explained the City was ready to do the 

waterline loop from Richman Street to Mill Street.  The project 



 11 

needs to be accomplished to provide more water for the Monarch 

project. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Torres to 

approve Highway 119 Waterline Project – Design Engineering Services. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 O. Ratification of 

  Phone Poll Regarding 

  Council Special 

  Meetings and  

  Work Session 

  Schedules Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Bennett to approve Ratification of Phone Poll Regarding Council 

Special Meetings and Work Session Schedules. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

  Mayor Spellman explained this would include the special meetings 

and work sessions on the Council meeting schedule.   

 

 P. Resolution 9-2014,  

  A Resolution Approving 

  the First Amendment 

  to Subdivision 

  Agreement Between the 

  City of Black Hawk and 

  Monarch Growth, 

  Inc. Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

   City Attorney Hoffmann explained this proposed amendment 

would do two things.  First the amount of the security would not 

cover all the excavation.  Second change relates back to the ballot 

question.  He stated we cannot do it in a separate agreement until 

the election is over. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve Resolution 9-2014, A Resolution Approving the 

First Amendment to Subdivision Agreement Between the City of Black 

Hawk and Monarch Growth, Inc. 



 12 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

 Q. Certificate of 

  Achievement for 

  Excellence in  

  Financial Reporting 

  For 2012 City Manager Lewis requested this be postponed to the February 

26, 2014 meeting.  He stated this was a finance award and the 

Finance Director was unavailable with the death of his father. 

 

   City Manager Lewis stated he was remiss acknowledging the 

Department Heads hard work on the handbook and Administrator 

Greiner for getting all the changes put together. 

 

   City Manager Lewis explained demolition on Gregory Street 

would start on February 24, 2014 and be completed no later than 

March 21, 2014.   

 

10. CITY ATTORNEY: City Attorney Hoffmann requested an Executive Session regarding 

legal issues pertaining to the grant program, potential legislation, 

and potential litigation.  

 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION:    

 

 MOTION TO 

 ADJOURN Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to adjourn into Executive Session 4:10 p.m. to hold a 

conference with the City’s attorney to receive legal advice on 

specific legal questions pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(b) and to 

determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to 

negotiations, develop a strategy for negotiations, or and/or instruct 

negotiators, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(e). 

 

 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 RECONVENE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Torres at 4:52 p.m. 

 

 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 

 

 



 13 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Moats MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Johnson 

to approve a change order in the amount of $62,500 as final settlement 

with White Construction regarding the maintenance facility. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

  

12. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Spellman declared the Regular Meeting of the City Council 

closed at 4:53 p.m.  

  

 

 

 

 

____________________________                               ___________________________ 

Jeanie M. Magno, CMC             David D. Spellman 

City Clerk                                Mayor 



RESOLUTION 10-2014, A 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 

A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR 

EXTERIOR 

REHABILITATION OF THE 

HISTORIC 

OUTBUILDINGS AND SITE 

WORK FOR THE 

PROPERTY AT 101 

MARCHANT STREET 



 

1 
 2/20/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\FORM-RES.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 COUNTY OF GILPIN 

 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

 Resolution No. _10__-2014 
 

TITLE: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR THE EXTERIOR REHABILITATION OF 

THE HISTORIC OUTBUILDINGS AND SITE WORK FOR THE 

PROPERTY AT 101 MARCHANT STREET  

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

Section 1. The City Council hereby determines to approve a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for the exterior rehabilitation of the historic outbuildings and site work for the 

property at 101 Marchant Street. 

 

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jeanie M. Magno, CMC, City Clerk 



lir 
BLACK HAWK 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 	 February 26, 2014 

SUBJECT:  
Certificate of Appropriateness for Exterior Rehabilitation of Two Historic Outbuildings 
and Site Work 
The applicant, Joann Kerr, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 
exterior rehabilitation of two historic outbuildings at 101 Marchant Street, as well as 
reconstruction of the site stairs on the front property line. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
The applicant, Joann Kerr, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 
exterior rehabilitation of two historic outbuildings at 101 Marchant Street, as well as 
reconstruction of the site stairs on the front property line. 

The estimated date of construction for the house is 1880, and the two outbuildings are at least 
fifty years of age. The property was first evaluated in 1986 when the National Park Service 
conducted a survey of historic resources in the communities of Black Hawk, Central City, and 
Nevadaville. In 1991, when Black Hawk was added to an expanded National Historic Landmark 
district, 101 Marchant Street was counted as a "contributing" building to the historic district, 
meaning it had retained sufficient integrity to contribute to the historic character of the district. 

In 2010-2011, a re-survey and evaluation of the historic district found that the residence did not 
retain its historic integrity, and was recommended that its status be changed to "non-
contributing" in the National Historic Landmark district. Outbuildings were not included in the 
re-evaluation. Although historic garages, mining structures, and other outbuildings could be 
considered contributing to a historic district, it is likely that these two structures, although over 
fifty years in age, were not built within the National Historic Landmark district's 1859 - 1918 
period of significance. 

Under previous owners, the property received the following City rehabilitation grants: 
1996-98: 	$80,000.00 for interior and exterior rehabilitation 
2005: 	$4,535.00 to replace/upgrade tankless water heater 
2008: 	$4,055.00 for tree removal 
2009: 	$1,923.75 to replace hydronic heating system boiler 
2010: 	$6,800.00 to replace heating system boiler 

The applicant is requesting approval of the following work, which requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness: 

• Shed foundation: install new 4" concrete slab foundation on grade. 



• Shed roof: install new sheathing over historic planking and install new asphalt roof; 
shingles to match house. 

• Shed exterior siding: repair existing siding and replace deteriorated siding as necessary 
to match original (anticipated 50% repair/replacement); paint to match house. 

• Shed window: repair existing wood window, retaining historic glass and frame; paint in 
trim color to match house. 

• Shed vehicle door: replace overhead door with wood carriage door; paint to match 
house. 

• Shed entry door: replace deteriorated wood door with four paneled wood door to match 
existing; paint to match house. 

• Coalhouse shed exterior siding: repair existing siding and replace deteriorated siding as 
necessary to match original (anticipated 25% repair/replacement); paint to match house. 

• Coalhouse shed roof: install new asphalt roof; shingles to match house. 
• Coalhouse shed entry door: replace deteriorated wood door with four paneled wood door 

to match existing door; paint to match house. 
• Repair loose stone in rock wall at corner of Marchant Street and High Street. 
• Remove existing site wall on north side of property and repair landscaping/erosion 

control as necessary. 
• Concrete site stairs: remove existing stairs, replace asphalt at Marchant Street, install 

new concrete stairs from street to grade, build stone retaining walls at sides, install new 
metal railing to match existing fence (see site plan in Attachment B). 

In accordance with the Black Hawk Municipal Code, all final plans for a Rehabilitation Grant 
must be reviewed by the Historic Preservation Commission as well as City Council. 

RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends to the Board of Aldermen APPROVAL of the Certificate of Appropriateness 
for exterior rehabilitation of the historic outbuildings and site work for the property at 101 
Marchant Street based on the criteria set forth in the staff report dated February 18, 2014. The 
Certificate of Appropriateness application for 101 Marchant Street meets the intent of the criteria 
outlined in the City of Black Hawk Community Restoration and Preservation Fund Guide to 
Programs, Sections 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Sections 2, 3, 4 and 6 of the 
City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines. 

RESOLUTION DATE: 
ORIGINATED BY:  

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:  
CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:  

SUBMITTED BY: 

February 26, 2014 
Community Planning and 
Development 
Cynthia L. Linker 
Staff Report and Attachments A-D 
[ ] Yes [X] No [ ] N/A 
INITIALS 	 
REVIEWED BY:  

02/19/14 

• 

Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D 	 Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 



 

1

 
CITY OF BLACK HAWK    Date prepared:     February 18, 2014 
PLANNING / LAND USE    Meeting Date:       February 26, 2014  

STAFF REPORT: 
For:     City Council 
Project: Certificate of Appropriateness for Exterior Rehabilitation of Two Historic 

Outbuildings and Site Work 
Property Address: 101 Marchant Street 
Property Owner: Joann Kerr 
Zoning:  Historic Residential (HR) 
Prepared by:  Cynthia Linker, City of Black Hawk  

BACKGROUND 
The applicant, Joann Kerr, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 
exterior rehabilitation of two historic outbuildings at 101 Marchant Street, as well as 
reconstruction of the site stairs on the front property line.    

The estimated date of construction for the house is 1880, and the two outbuildings are at least 
fifty years of age.  The property was first evaluated in 1986 when the National Park Service 
conducted a survey of historic resources in the communities of Black Hawk, Central City, and 
Nevadaville.  In 1991, when Black Hawk was added to an expanded National Historic Landmark 
district, 101 Marchant Street was counted as a contributing building to the historic district, 
meaning it had retained sufficient integrity to contribute to the historic character of the district.    

In 2010-2011, a re-survey and evaluation of the historic district found that the residence did not 
retain its historic integrity, and was recommended that its status be changed to non-
contributing in the National Historic Landmark district.  Outbuildings were not included in the 
re-evaluation.  Although historic garages, mining structures, and other outbuildings could be 
considered contributing to a historic district, it is likely that these two structures, although over 
fifty years in age, were not built within the National Historic Landmark district s 1859 - 1918 
period of significance.    

Under previous owners, the property received the following City rehabilitation grants: 
1996-98:   $80,000.00 for interior and exterior rehabilitation 
2005:    $4,535.00 to replace/upgrade tankless water heater 
2008:   $4,055.00 for tree removal 
2009:    $1,923.75 to replace hydronic heating system boiler 
2010:    $6,800.00 to replace heating system boiler  

The applicant is requesting approval of the following work, which requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness: 

 

Shed foundation: install new 4 concrete slab foundation on grade.  

 

Shed roof:  install new sheathing over historic planking and install new asphalt roof; 
shingles to match house. 

 

Shed exterior siding:  repair existing siding and replace deteriorated siding as necessary 
to match original (anticipated 50% repair/replacement); paint to match house. 



 

2

  
Shed window:  repair existing wood window, retaining historic glass and frame; paint in 
trim color to match house. 

 
Shed vehicle door:  replace overhead door with wood carriage door; paint to match 
house. 

 
Shed entry door:  replace deteriorated wood door with four paneled wood door to match 
existing; paint to match house. 

 
Coalhouse shed exterior siding:  repair existing siding and replace deteriorated siding as 
necessary to match original (anticipated 25% repair/replacement); paint to match house. 

 

Coalhouse shed roof:  install new asphalt roof; shingles to match house. 

 

Coalhouse shed entry door:  replace deteriorated wood door with four paneled wood door 
to match existing door; paint to match house. 

 

Repair loose stone in rock wall at corner of Marchant Street and High Street. 

 

Remove existing site wall on north side of property and repair landscaping/erosion 
control as necessary. 

 

Concrete site stairs:  remove existing stairs, replace asphalt at Marchant Street, install 
new concrete stairs from street to grade, build stone retaining walls at sides, install new 
metal railing to match existing fence (see site plan in Attachment B).    

In accordance with the Black Hawk Municipal Code, all final plans for a Rehabilitation Grant 
must be reviewed by the Historic Preservation Commission as well as City Council.        

  APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS   
Excerpt from: 

City of Black Hawk 
Community Restoration and Preservation Fund 

Guide to Programs  

Section 1:  Background, Purpose and Program Goals, (d) General Program Information, (3) The 
City Council shall have the authority in its sole discretion to deny any application submitted for a 
grant or easement project, if in their opinion, the property owner has neglected adequately 
maintain their property allowing it to become in a state of disrepair.  

Excerpt from: 
City of Black Hawk Zoning Code 

Chapter 16 
Section 16-368, City Council historic review process  

16-368: Anyone seeking to renovate the exterior of, add to or construct a new building shall be 
subject to the following procedures. Any such renovation construction or demolition 
shall be subject to the City s design standards.     

f.  Criteria for determining appropriateness of proposed erection, construction, 
reconstruction or alteration. In determining the appropriateness of a proposed site plan 
or building permit for the erection, construction or alteration of a building, the HPC 
and the City Council shall consider the following: 



 

3

   
1. All plans, drawings and photographs as may be submitted by the applicant; 

The scope of work submitted by Consilium Partners show the existing conditions and 
adequately describes the proposed alterations.  (See Attachment B:  101 Marchant Street 
Bid Scope Outline (Design/Build) plans and photographs).  

2. Information presented at a public hearing held concerning the proposed work; 
Findings and recommendation from Historic Preservation Commission will be presented 
to the Board of Aldermen at the Public Hearing scheduled for February 26, 2014.  

3. The purpose of this Chapter; 
The information received adequately describes the proposed work in order to determine 
the appropriateness of the proposed rehabilitation.  

4. Compliance with the Black Hawk Municipal Code and the payment of all fees required 
by the Black Hawk Municipal Code; 
The project complies with all regulations of the Municipal Code.    

5. The historical and architectural style, the general design, arrangement, texture, 
materials, and color of the development, building or structure in question or its 
appurtenance fixtures; the relationship of such features to similar features of the other 
buildings within the City and the position of the building, structure, park or open space 
in relation to public right-of-way and to other buildings and structures in the City; 
The outbuildings are simple vernacular structures that are typical of twentieth century 
outbuildings and sheds.  The larger rectangular plan shed has a shed roof and a 
combination of wood clapboard and shiplap siding.  The vehicle door faces Marchant 
Street.  The small coalhouse shed also has a shed roof and clapboard siding.  Although 
these two outbuildings were likely constructed after the NHL district s period of 
significance (i.e., post-1918), they are over fifty years of age and add to the district s 
historic sense of time and place.      

6. The effects of the proposed work upon the protection, enhancement, perpetuation and 
use of the City which cause it to possess a special character or special historical or 
aesthetic interest or value; and 
The property was re-evaluated in 2010-2011 and was determined non-contributing to 
the National Historic Landmark historic district.  However, the outbuildings within the 
district were not reviewed for their contributing status at this time. The HPC should 
review the proposed alterations and evaluate their effect on the historic outbuildings 
potential eligibility.     



 

4

  
7. The design standards for the City. 

Sections 2. Site Design; 3. Rehabilitation of Historic Structures; 4. Paint, Paint Colors 
and Lead Paint Issues; and 6. Historic Accessory Structures of the City of Black Hawk 
Residential Design Guidelines adopted in 2011 apply to this application.  Listed below 
are the applicable sections, and the consultant s evaluation for compliance of the 
proposed alterations for 101 Marchant Street.   

Excerpt from:  
City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines 

2.  Site Design 
2.2   Topography and Grade  

2.2.4.   Use terraces for sloped building sites. 
              b.  The use of rock retaining walls, similar to those used historically, is     

encouraged.  

2.3  Fencing  
2.3.1. Painted wood, wrought iron, picket, woven wire, rail or stone fences    

are appropriate in residential-type areas.    
a.  Wrought iron fencing should be either black or rust colored.  

2.3.4.  Fences shall be similar to those seen historically.  

2.4  Retaining walls  
2.4.2.  Native stone retaining walls are encouraged.     

a.  Stone walls should be similar in appearance to those seen       
historically, including finishing, joining, and height.  

2.4.3.  Retaining walls should be of dry stone or stone masonry and be compatible  
with other features onsite.    

2.4.5.  Use walls to prevent erosion and drainage issues.  

Evaluation of proposal s compliance with Section 2: 
The proposed changes to the site meet the design guidelines.  The new native stone retaining 
walls along the side of the new concrete stairs will prevent erosion, and are similar to those seen 
historically.  The metal fence above the new stair retaining walls are black metal.  While a 
painted wood fence would be more appropriate, in this instance, a metal fence is present on the 
front property line.  The new stair railings would therefore match the existing fence.  The 
existing concrete stairs are not historic, and further extend into the right-of-way of Marchant 
Street.  The new concrete stairs will be set within the property boundaries.    



 

5

  
3.  Rehabilitation of Historic Structures  

3.1  Appropriateness of Use  
3.1.1   Seek uses that are compatible with the historic character of the building.  

3.2  Roofs  
3.2.A.1.  Preserve the original roof form.  This includes the roof s shape and  

decorative features.  
3.2.B.2.  When repair or replacement is necessary, use materials similar to the  

original.  

3.3.  Exterior Materials:  Wood Siding and Masonry  
3.3.A.1. Original historic finish materials should be preserved, rehabilitated  

and/or repaired.    
a.  If portions of wood siding must be replaced, be sure to match     

the lap dimensions of the original.  
3.3.B.4.   Repair or replacement of mortar should be done by a masonry  

professional experienced in historic masonry repair.  
3.3.C.1.   Protect and maintain significant stylistic elements.    

a.  Avoid removing or altering any historic material or significant     
features.    

b.  Repair historic building features that are deteriorated where     
feasible.    

c.  When disassembly of an historic element is necessary for its     
restoration, use methods that minimize damage to the original     
materials.    

d.  Use the gentlest possible procedures for cleaning, refinishing, 
and    repairing historic materials.  
3.3.C.2.  Replace missing original features in kind where feasible. 

     a.   Replacement of missing architectural elements should be based    
on accurate information about original features. 

            b.   Where reconstruction of an element is impossible, develop a     
compatible new design that is a simplified interpretation of the     
original. 

           
3.4  Doors  

3.4.1.   Retaining and preserving original doors and door openings is preferred  
rather than replacement. 

     3.4.5.   Avoid changing the position of historic doors. 
     3.4.6.   When replacing doors, use designs similar to those found historically on  

comparable buildings in Black Hawk. 
            c.  Contemporary ornate doors are discouraged on contributing    

buildings, unless photographic evidence can substantiate their     
historic use.  



 

6

 
3.5  Windows  

3.5.A.1. Identify, retain and preserve the functional and decorative features of  
windows found historically.  

3.5.C.3.  Avoid changing the position of historic windows.  
3.5.C.4.  Maintain the historic subdivisions of windows.  
3.5.C.6.  Genuine, transparent glass shall be used in all windows and doors.  

Evaluation of proposal s compliance with Section 3: 
The following elements of the proposal meet the design guidelines:  The proposed uses for the 
two outbuildings retain the historic uses as sheds and outbuildings.  The original roof form is 
preserved, and the shingles will match those on the house.  The existing siding will be preserved 
and repaired when possible, and replaced in kind if too deteriorated for use.  The new entry doors 
will be replaced with wood doors that replicate the original appearance.  The new vehicle door is 
not ornate.  The historic window will be repaired, preserving the original position, historic 
subdivisions, and the use of transparent glass.    

4.  Paint, Paint Colors and Lead Paint Issues 
4.1  Color  

4.1.1.  Use historic color schemes.  
4.1.2.  Develop a color scheme for the entire building that coordinates all the  

façade elements.  
4.1.3.  Use muted colors for the base and brighter colors for accents.  
4.1.4.  Leave natural masonry finishes unpainted when feasible.  

4.2 Lead Paint  
The City will conduct lead clearance testing on all restoration and preservation grant projects 
upon completion of the job.  Per the EPA-Renovation, Repair and Painting Final Rule (40 CFR 
745) all renovations conducted for compensation, MUST be performed by Certified Firms using 
Certified Renovators.  All contractors and subcontractors need to follow the EPA-RRP rules and 
Regulations.  

Evaluation of proposal s compliance with Section 4: 
The proposed paint scheme for the two outbuildings meets the design guidelines.   Weecycle 
Environmental Consulting, Inc. performed lead base paint and asbestos testing.  The reports are 
attached to this report.  No asbestos was found, but lead base paint is present.  The building will 
be restored and preserved Per the EPA-Renovation, Repair and Painting Final Rule (40 CFR 
745).   

6. Historic Accessory Structures 
6.1  Preservation of Historic Accessory Structures  

6.1.1   The preservation of accessory structures is strongly encouraged.   

6.2  Rehabilitation of Historic Accessory Structures  
6.2.1.  Repair deteriorated historic building features when feasible. 



 

7

  
6.2.2.  Replace missing original features in kind when feasible.  
6.2.3.  When disassembly of an historic element is necessary for its restoration,  

use methods that minimize damage to the original materials.  
6.2.4.  Replacement of missing architectural elements should be based on  

accurate information about original features.  
6.2.5.  Where documentation is lacking on a missing element, develop a  

compatible new design that is a simplified interpretation of the original.  

Evaluation of proposal s compliance with Section 6: 
The following elements of the rehabilitation plan meet the design guidelines:  The historic 
accessory structures will be preserved and rehabilitated.  The deteriorated building features will 
be repaired when feasible, and replaced in-kind when too deteriorated for repair.  There is no 
documentation on the original vehicular doors, so the proposed doors are a simplified 
interpretation of the original.  

APPLICABLE GUIDE TO PROGRAM STANDARDS 
All grants, whether Emergency, Technical Assistance or Rehabilitation Grants must adhere to the 
eligibility requirements in the City of Black Hawk Community Restoration and Preservation 
Fund Guide to Programs.  Part of the eligibility requirements in the Guide states that work must 
comply with the Secretary of the Interior s Standards for treatment of historic properties.  These 
were addressed through the evaluation of the project against the City of Black Hawk s design 
guidelines.   

CONSULTANT COMMENTS 
The following work requires a Certificate of Appropriateness: 

 

Shed foundation: install new 4 concrete slab foundation on grade.  

 

Shed roof:  install new sheathing over historic planking and install new asphalt roof; 
shingles to match house. 

 

Shed exterior siding:  repair existing siding and replace deteriorated siding as necessary 
to match original (anticipated 50% repair/replacement); paint to match house. 

 

Shed window:  repair existing wood window, retaining historic glass and frame; paint in 
trim color to match house. 

 

Shed vehicle door:  replace overhead door with wood carriage door; paint to match 
house. 

 

Shed entry door:  replace deteriorated wood door with four paneled wood door to match 
existing; paint to match house. 

 

Coalhouse shed exterior siding:  repair existing siding and replace deteriorated siding as 
necessary to match original (anticipated 25% repair/replacement); paint to match house. 

 

Coalhouse shed roof:  install new asphalt roof; shingles to match house. 

 

Coalhouse shed entry door:  replace deteriorated wood door with four paneled wood door 
to match existing door; paint to match house. 

 

Repair loose stone in rock wall at corner of Marchant Street and High Street. 

 

Remove existing site wall on north side of property and repair landscaping/erosion 
control as necessary. 



 

8

  
Concrete site stairs:  remove existing stairs, replace asphalt at Marchant Street, install 
new concrete stairs from street to grade, build stone retaining walls at sides, install new 
metal railing to match existing fence (see site plan in Attachment B).    

The consultant s evaluation of the proposal finds that all elements of the proposed work is in 
accordance with the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines and the U.S. Secretary of 
the Interior s Standards for Rehabilitation.   

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
On February 18, 2014, the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) evaluated the application, 
the comments in the report, and testimony by staff and the consultants. The Commission 
discussed if there was sufficient evidence that the Certificate of Appropriateness application met 
the intent of the criteria outlined in the City of Black Hawk Community Restoration and 
Preservation Fund Guide to Programs, Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, and 
Sections 2, 3, 4 and 6 of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines.    

At the conclusion of its discussion, the Historic Preservation Commission recommended to the 
Board of Aldermen APPROVAL of the Certificate of Appropriateness for exterior rehabilitation 
of the historic outbuildings and site work for the property at 101 Marchant Street based on the 
criteria set forth in the staff report dated February 18, 2014.  The Certificate of Appropriateness 
application for 101 Marchant Street meets the intent of the criteria outlined in the City of Black 
Hawk Community Restoration and Preservation Fund Guide to Programs, Sections 16-368 of the 
Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Sections 2, 3, 4 and 6 of the City of Black Hawk Residential 
Design Guidelines.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff also recommends to the Board of Aldermen APPROVAL of the Certificate of 
Appropriateness for exterior rehabilitation of the historic outbuildings and site work for the 
property at 101 Marchant Street based on the criteria set forth in the staff report dated February 
18, 2014.  The Certificate of Appropriateness application for 101 Marchant Street meets the 
intent of the criteria outlined in the City of Black Hawk Community Restoration and 
Preservation Fund Guide to Programs, Sections 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, and 
Sections 2, 3, 4 and 6 of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines.    

ATTACHMENTS 

 

A: Cultural Resource Evaluation Form 

 

B: 101 Marchant Street Bid Scope Outline (Design/Build) 

 

includes photographs 

 

C:  Lead Based Paint Report 

 

Weecycle Environmental Consulting, Inc. 

 

D: Asbestos Report 

 

Weecycle Environmental Consulting, Inc. 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 
the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for Rehabilitation of Outbuildings and Site Improvements 
for 101 Marchant Street. This property is described in Exhibit A below and is generally 
located at 101 Marchant Street.  

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 
Wednesday, February 26, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter.  The public 
hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 
Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 
hearings are adjourned.  

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  
MAY ATTEND  

Jeanie Magno 
City Clerk  

Exhibit A  

101 Marchant Street 

    

S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 009 Lot: 003 THRU:- Lot: 006 E PT 
LOT 3 DESC IN QUIET TITLE #120828 & IMPS LESS 271 SQ FT OF LOT 6 DESC 
IN RECPT#136751   



 BLACK HAWK CULTURAL RESOURCE SURVEY     

 Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form    

 (page 1 of 2) 
 
 

1. Current Address:  101 Marchant 
 

2. Resource Number:  5GL.7.400                                                   3.  NHL Resource Number: B9-3 
 
4. Resource Name:                                                                                         

5. Purpose of this current site visit (check as many as apply) 

         Site is within a current project area 

   X    Resurvey 

   X    Update of previous site form(s) 
         Surface collection 
          Testing to determine eligibility 
         Excavation 
         Other 

  

6. Previous Recordings:  

   X     1986 National Park Service Survey    X    Photograph 

   X     1991 National Historic Landmark Nomination      No Photographs                    X    Contributing  

   X      1998 Re-survey    X    Photograph 

   X      2004 Photo survey           Photograph   

            Other:            Photograph 

  

7. Exterior alterations since 1986:   1992:  bedroom addition.  1998:  HP grant for alteration & repair - $25,000.  

Large addition to the west, additions to rear & new construction at northeast corner of the lot; house 

reclad in vinyl siding; windows replaced – now 1/1; front porch removed & new enclosed addition set 

within the “L” with skylights; new wrought iron fence. 

   

8. Additional historical background :  Although Sanborn maps never covered this portion of Marchant Street 

(formerly “Merchant” street), the house is visible with mature plantings in photos from the 1880s.  One 

photo indicates that this house was constructed prior to 111 Marchant.   
 

 

 

Ca. 1880         Construction date           Estimate from 1986 NPS Survey     X     New estimate 

Sources of information: Digital Image Collection, Western History & Genealogy, Denver Public Library; The 
Gilpin Railroad Era (Abbot) 

 

 Sanborn Maps 

        1886   

        1890 

        1895 

        1900



Current Address:  101 Marchant                                                     (page 2 of 2) 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.400                                                   

NHL Resource Number: B9-3 

     

9. Changes to Location or Size Information: Large 2 story addition on the west, and new construction (garage 

& living quarters) at the northeast corner of the lot  
 

10. Revised National Historic Landmark District- Contributing Building Eligibility Assessment:  

 Contributing              Non contributing   X           Need data    

 

11. National Register - Individual Eligibility Assessment: 

 Eligible            Not eligible     X         Need data   

 

12.  Is there National Register district potential?  Yes   X        No              

 Discuss: this house would not be contributing to a potential N.R. district.  District boundaries would 

likely be drawn so as to exclude this property. 
 

13. Local Designation - Individual Eligibility Assessment:  

 Eligible            Not eligible   X           Need data   

 

14.  Is there Local district potential?  Yes   X       No              

 Discuss: this house would not be contributing to a potential local district.   

 

15. Photograph Types and Numbers: Digital, <.jpg> format.  101 Marchant-1.JPG, 101 Marchant-2.JPG, 101 

Marchant-3.JPG, 101 Marchant-4.JPG, 101 Marchant-5.JPG 

 

16. Report Title: Black Hawk Historic Resource Resurvey:  2009-2010 

 

17. Recorder(s):  Deon Wolfenbarger 18. Date(s): July 15, 2010 

 

19. Recorder Affiliation: Three Gables Preservation 

 

20. Attachments                     21. Official determination  
 (check as many as apply)             (OAHP USE ONLY) 
   X   Photographs         Determined Eligible 
        Site sketch map         Determined Not Eligible 
        U.S.G.S. map photocopy         Need Data 

   X   Other                                 Nominated 
        Other                                 Listed 
             Contributing to N.R. District 
             Not Contributing to N.R. Dist 



Current Address:  101 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.400                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B9-3 
Current Photographs 

Date:  04/09/2009, 1/21/2010, 3/16/2010 

 

      
 

      
 

 



Current Address:  101 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.400                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B9-3 
 

1998 Resurvey Photograph 

 
 

1986 Survey Photograph 

 



Current Address:  101 Marchant                                       Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.400                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B9-3 
 

Gilpin County Assessor’s Photographs 
 

    
 

   
 

   
 



Current Address:  101 Marchant                                       Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.400                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B9-3 
 

Gilpin County Assessor’s Photographs (cont). 
 

   
 
 
 

Historic Photograph 

 
 

Date: unknown; late 1800s 
 
 
 



 
 

Current Address:  101 Marchant                                       Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.400                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B9-3 
 

Historic photographs 

 
Ca. 1899 

 
Ca. 1912 



1 

 

101 MARCHANT STREET 
 

Black Hawk, Colorado 
 

Rehabilitation Grant – Outbuildings 
 

 
 
 

Bid Scope Outline (Design/Build) 
 
 

Prepared by: 



2 

 

101 Marchant Street – Bid Scope Outline (Design/Build) 
 

Storage Shed 
- Foundation: Investigate existing foundation/retaining system and provide design documents as 

required to support any required replacements. 
o May require engineered drawings 
o It is anticipated that concrete stem retaining walls will be needed below grade 

 

     
Existing wood retaining walls    Exterior grade on west side of storage shed 

 
- Slab: Install new 4” thick concrete slab on grade 

 

 
Existing subfloor to be removed and replaced with concrete 

 
- Walls: Repair/replace damaged members as needed by sistering new wood members to existing 

– reuse as much of the original wall framing as possible (anticipated 50% repair/replacement); 
repair siding/trim with wood to match existing, reusing as much existing siding as possible; paint 
to match house within historic guidelines 
 



3 

 

     
Typical existing wall framing   Typical south façade siding 

 

     

Typical north, west and east façade siding  Existing house color 
 

- Roof: Repair/replace damaged members as needed by sistering new wood members to existing – 
reuse as much of the original roof framing as possible (anticipated 25% repair/replacement); 
install new sheathing over historic planking, install new roof shingles to match house 
 

      
Typical existing roof framing    Existing roofing – remove/replace with shingles 

 



4 

 

- Windows: Refurbish existing wood window (retain glass and frame) and repaint frame 
  

 
 Existing window 
 

- Doors: Replace overhead door with painted wood carriage doors (see attachment for potential 
concepts – true wood carriage door, or faux carriage overhead door), replace man door with 
painted paneled wood door to match existing, add wood access stairs from grade to door 
 

     
Existing overhead door     Existing man door 

 

 
New stair location inside storage shed at man door 
 



5 

 

- Electric: Repair/replace as necessary to meet current code 
 

 
 Existing power receptacle and switch 
 

- Gutters/Downspouts: Not included unless required by others or requested by homeowner (at their 
cost) 

 
 
Coalhouse Shed 

- Foundation: No work required 
 

- Floor: Replace existing wood floor with new wood framing to match existing conditions 
 

 
 Existing wood floor 
 



6 

 

- Walls: Repair/replace damaged members as needed by sistering new wood members to existing 
– reuse as much of the original wall framing as possible (anticipated 25% repair/replacement); 
repair siding/trim with wood to match existing, reusing as much existing siding as possible; paint 
to match house within historic guidelines 
 

     
Interior wall framing     Existing wood siding 

 
- Roof: No change to existing – appears to not be original framing; install new roof shingles to 

match house 
 

- Doors: Replace man door with painted paneled wood door to match existing 
 

 
Existing wood door 

 



7 

 

Site 
- Stairs:  

o Remove existing stairs and repair/replace asphalt at street 
 

 
Existing stair location in right of way 

 
o Install concrete stairs from street to grade with retaining walls (see attached site plan for 

new location) 
� May require engineered drawings 
� Are not considered egress stairs 

o Add railing to match existing 
 

 
 Existing railing and gate 
 

- Remove existing planter area adjacent to existing stairs and replace with asphalt 
 



8 

 

- Repair loose stone at corner of Marchant Street and High Street 
 

 
 Loose stone at second course of wall 
 

- Remove existing site wall on north side of property and repair landscaping/erosion control as 
necessary 
 

 
Non-historic wall 



CL15N 

Classic Single Bar (No Lites) 

Page 1 of 1Real Carriage Doors - Classic Line

2/4/2014http://www.realcarriagedoors.com/door-lines-cat.php?page=classic-carriage-doors



Page 1 of 2Real Carriage Doors - Closeup

1/23/2014http://www.realcarriagedoors.com/gallery-zoom.php?galleryid=J3177-20120904-CLN-Car...

killian
Arrow

killian
Arrow

killian
Text Box
Paint doors per approved historic color(s) - Do not leave as natural wood



TOPOGRAPHIC MAP OF 

Scope Drawing 
101 Marchant St. 

A PORTION OF LOTS 3 AND 4, BLOCK 9 
CITY OF BLACK HAWIC, COUNTY OF GILPIN 
STATE OF COLORADO 

12 

MDINGS,:rpuICAYNM 

RECEPTION NO 120828 
"0 
Of .. 
WO 

1 
rig  
V i :11 
IP NO , 	4,-V.1.0,41111110111. 

S WV. E 10 
LI 

41 ti 
6 	

14 

ilA 

A6/ dii'll-i.fiais  

DAM 1 at. 

It 

1,017-0E-WAS PER DER 
EGERTON N0118]51 

N 65101161.  IV 	124 

2 	̀'' 

i 	' 
../ 

101 MOHAN, ST= 

FRAME 
HOUSE 

Repair Irrigation / 
Landscaping as 

Necessary 

_ . - 	

— 

RA 

9 

ROM 9 
]8.0 

TEIF 
6X 676' 

01 104-4 
OR, 
PS irk 
;#11 

1 N . 

11191 

IMill o 	 ,:-._ 
SPH , 	, 

. 	 , 
N 65101' F W 	 mp In Ed...„■ 

4.11.1;'7aWARAVIPATttiVitdreiliatVilergeAre ' 1.  

MITIM 

ROC WALL MCC 	 -.... 	
0 

---.1 .. 0g&O 
' re?ItIPSVANT RINag 

:LIMA' 

.,, 	 4r -17 
MI 	4.■ 

. r 	 4810/4111K 

REMOVE 	 MAYCHANT MU 
RV MOHT-OR-VIAS 	 wE 

New Retaining 
Wall 

REMOVE 	"loose" Repair 	Rock 

New Stairs 

BENCHMARK cs 0.  
VAL. 	

- V 

M.N. 
PAM MAKE AS SHOWN 
ELEVAPON ,133 8 

BLOCC 11 Page 1 of 1 
CCS. CONSULTANTS, INC 
48130 Robb Street alb 206 
Wheat PI* Colaado 80093 
Plus 303.403.9708 60 30940902900 

-8u080vnU015 sa am, 8J0kuramprr, 



City of Black Hawk 
101 Marchant St. – Lead-Based Paint Inspection 

WEECYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 
 
5375 Western Avenue, Suite B   211 Haggerty Lane, Suite D 
Boulder, Colorado 80301    Bozeman, MT 59715 
(303) 413-0452   Fax (303) 413-0710  (406) 548- 5450  
 

 
 
January 22, 2014 
 

Cindy Linker 
City of Black Hawk 
PO BOX 68 
Black Hawk, CO 80422 
 

RE: Site Specific EPA/HUD - 40 CFR 745.80 Subpart E Lead-Based Surface 
Coating Inspection at 101 Marchant St., Black Hawk, CO 80422 (the Property), 
Shed and Garage 
 

Dear Ms. Linker: 
 

On January 10, 2014, Chris Schiechl, a certified Colorado Lead-Based Paint (LBP) 
Inspector from Weecycle Environmental Consulting, Inc., completed a site specific Lead 
Based Surface Coatings Survey for Renovation, Repair and Painting (RRP) 40CFR 
745.80 Subpart E,  at the Property. The contractor identified areas within the structure 
which may potentially be impacted by the “work” at the property. These areas were 
tested and identified on the XRF data sheet. LBP (Lead Based Paint) was identified on 
the tested surfaces at the Property. 
 

Non-painted surfaces such as unpainted ceramic tile and porcelain bathtubs may be a 
source of lead exposure during demolition or renovation. These items are not considered 
lead-based paint; their presence does not need to be included in disclosure under the 
Lead Disclosure Rule. 

Identifying Information 

 

Site Address: 101 Marchant St.         Owner’s Address:  Kerr, Thomas L & Joann 
  Black Hawk, CO 80422          PO Box 43 
                  Black Hawk, CO 80422 
 

Constructed:  1859 
Weecycle Job Number:  14-09836 
 

Site Notes 
 

None 

Sampling Procedure 

 

Weecycle Environmental Consulting, Inc. completed this inspection according to the 
most current HUD guidelines. On-site testing of painted surfaces for lead content was 
completed using a portable Niton XLp-301A Spectrum Analyzer Lead Detector (Serial 
Number 25097) which utilizes X-Ray Fluorescence analysis.   



City of Black Hawk 
101 Marchant St. – Lead-Based Paint Inspection 

 

Lead Based Paint Testing is performed in accordance with HUD Guidelines as revised 
11/97 with the following procedural notes:  
  
1)  Room equivalents are generally listed by number, starting with the 1st room of the 

main entrance and proceeding clockwise on each floor. Walls are listed in each room 
by letter with wall “A” facing the street of address, proceeding clockwise to “B, C, D”, 
etc. Multiple components (i.e. windows or doors) are listed moving left to right along 
each wall. 

2)  Substrates are labeled as Brick, Concrete, Drywall, Plaster, Stucco, Wood or Metal.  
Concrete block or cinder block or CMU are labeled concrete. Wallpapered surfaces 
are examined by XRF for concealed lead based paint with postulated substrates. 
 

In addition to on-site analysis, leaded dust wipes, bulk paint chip, and/or lead in soil 
samples of suspected surfaces may have been collected at the discretion of the risk 
assessor at the request of the contractor. These samples will be analyzed for lead 
content by Reservoirs Environmental Services, Inc., an AIHA ELLAP (Environmental 
Lead Laboratory Accreditation Program) approved laboratory.   

 

EPA, 40 CFR 745.80 Subpart  E, Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule: Under the 
rule, beginning in April 2010, contractors performing renovation, repair and painting 
projects that disturb lead-based paint in homes, child care facilities, and schools built 
before 1978 must be certified and must follow specific work practices to prevent lead 
contamination. All painted surfaces must be assumed positive for lead-based paint 
unless tested and confirmed to be negative. 

Target Housing is a home or residential unit built on or before December 31, 1977, 
except: 

 Housing built for the elderly or persons with disabilities )unless a child less 
than 6 years old lives or is expected to live in the house or unit); or 

 Zero-bedroom dwellings (studio apartments, hospitals, hotels, dormitories, 
etc.) 

 

The EPA – Renovate, Repair and Painting Rule defines a child- occupied facility as a 
pre-1978 building that meets all three of the criteria below:  

 Visited regularly by the same child, under 6 years of age.  

 The visits are on at least two different days within any week (Sunday through 
Saturday period), provided that each day’s visit lasts at least 3 hours. 

 Combined weekly visits last at least 6 hours, and the combined annual visits 
last at least 60 hours. 

Child-occupied facilities may be located in a public or commercial building or in target 
housing. These facilities include schools, child care facilities, and daycare centers. 
 

FEDERAL LEAD-BASED PAINT STANDARDS 

Paint – Definition of Lead-Based Paint 

Paint or other surface coatings that contain at least: 

 1 milligram per square centimeter (mg/cm2) of lead; 
 0.5 percent lead; or 5,000 parts per million lead by dry weight. 



City of Black Hawk 
101 Marchant St. – Lead-Based Paint Inspection 

Note:  In 1978 the Consumer Product Safety Commission banned the residential use of 
lead-based paint that contained greater than or equal to 0.06 percent or 600 ppm of 
lead. 

Dust – Federal Thresholds for Lead-Contamination (in micrograms per square 
foot) 

 Floors   40 µg/ft² 
 Interior window sills  250 µg/ft² 
 Window troughs (Clearance only)  400 µg/ft² 
 

Soil – Federal Thresholds for Bare Soil Contamination (in micrograms per gram; 
equivalent to parts per million) 

 Play areas used by children under age 6 400 µg/gram 
 Other areas, if more than 9 ft² in total area of bare 
 soil per property  1,200 µg/gram 
 Abatement required by HUD 5,000 µg/gram 

 

Site Findings 
 

Lead-based paint (LBP) was identified on the interior and exterior of the building in the 
following location(s): 
 
Shed 

A. Door and Door Casing (Wood, White, Brown,) Interior and Exterior of Shed 
B. Wall (Wood, Grey,) Interior of Shed  

 
Garage 
C. Door and Door Casing (Wood, White, Brown) Exterior of Garage 
D. Trim (Wood, White) Exterior of Garage 
E. Window Casing (Wood, White) Exterior of Garage 
F. Wall (Wood, Grey, White) Interior  of Garage 

Site-Specific Lead Hazard Control Plan 
  

Hazard A-F: Interior surfaces covered in LBP. (See Above) 
Periodic visual monitoring of these surfaces by the Property’s owner is required 
according to HUD guidelines. As they begin to degrade, either wet-strip and re-paint or 
encapsulate with non-LBP (please refer to the rest of this control plan for more details).  
If remodeling or renovation activities disturb these sites, adhere to the following 
procedure. Certified contractors are required to follow the applicable HUD, EPA, and 
OSHA Lead-in-Construction standards. When remodeling, renovation or painting 
activities have been completed a cleaning verification procedure or a final clearance (by 
dust wipe) should be performed to verify the work was completed properly. Based on the 
results of this analysis, please follow all applicable local, state, and federal regulations 
when disposing of this material. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Black Hawk 
101 Marchant St. – Lead-Based Paint Inspection 

ANALYTICAL RESULTS 
 

Table 1.  Summary of Positive XRF Readings 

XRF 
Sample # 

Component 
(window, door, wall, stair rail, etc.) 

Location 
 

Side 
 

Lead Content, 
( mg/cm² ) 

14 Door  Ext. Shed C 13.2 

15 Door Int. Shed C 23.7 
17 Wall Int. Shed B 7.5 

20 Trim Ext. Garage A 8.3 

24 Trim Ext. Garage C 20.2 

25 Trim Ext. Garage D 3.4 

27 Door Casing Ext. Garage D 17.9 

28 Door Ext. Garage D 8.1 

29 Window Casing Ext. Garage D 9.5 

33 Wall Int. Garage B 9.1 

34 Wall Int. Garage D 10.1 

General Recommendations    
 

1) A full re-survey is NOT recommended for surfaces that have already been tested.  
However, a re-survey is recommended for other interior and exterior painted 
surfaces as they begin to degrade and/or prior to any renovations or modifications.  
In addition, a reevaluation of surface with LBP should be completed. Please refer to 
the enclosed reevaluation schedule (located in the Appendices) for HUD’s 
recommended timeline. 

2) Painted surfaces should be inspected annually and repainted as needed before 
deterioration occurs. Before any scraping or sanding, the paint should be determined 
to be lead-based paint or non lead-based paint and appropriate measures taken to 
prevent the generation or spreading of paint chips or dust.   

3) Vegetation, mulch and ground cover should be inspected quarterly and annually 
renewed to cover the soil along the foundation of the buildings and grounds. The soil 
should NOT be disturbed, allowing lead-containing dust to be tracked into the house 
by residents or their pets. 

4) Windows and doors in the building should be inspected annually for wear on friction 
surfaces, which may create lead dust. For doors, plane the edges of the door to 
eliminate friction. For windows, remove paint from window sash and friction frame.  
Seal lead-based paint waste in plastic bags and dispose properly, then wash 
surfaces with Tri-Sodium Phosphate (TSP). Collect and dispose of the wash water in 
compliance with local disposal requirements. With approval of waste regulators, 
wash water can be flushed into a sanitary sewer (toilet). 

5) Please call for a re-survey of any surfaces which you wish to disturb for renovations, 
repair or demolition, especially disturbing a painted surface in the older portion of the 
building. You may want to hire a qualified LBP contractor and/or use LBP techniques 
to control dust. 

6) When cleaning, use wet mopping with a general purpose cleaner, rather than 
sweeping. For occasional vacuuming, use a HEPA rated vacuum.  

7) Please contact Weecycle Environmental Consulting, Inc. for additional information. 
 

 



City of Black Hawk 
101 Marchant St. – Lead-Based Paint Inspection 

Enclosed are copies of the sampling data (i.e. XRF spectral data and/or laboratory 
analytical results), and relevant professional documents and certifications. If you have 
questions or require additional services, please call (303) 413-0452 or (800) 875-7033. 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Judith Sawitsky 
President 
Colorado Cert. No. 8747 



kr-azity 

01` ON&  0 	?A.; 	 fOlP 4f  r; Stit AA!! '10* 1.0k ill 	7  9 .514!1;  b  If"  
.4% 414  '. 	

w;74,4‹e, 	1P4Z-i bst,331  

,1 	$wrfw.h.ri ferforwerl ,r,c7-; 	; owrivsNrwyr 	:RrtP s 	fro4 Te,r4r 	,vr-NWPSvrit lifglvq,41 SvPV4vrThfr,NWIV9 i°ac1grerWr 

Us 

64, 
0 

4 

STATE OF COLORADO 

LEAD-BASED PAINT 
CERTIFICATION* 

Colorado Department of Public Health 
andgEtiVifonment 

Air Pollution Control Div sion 

his,certifies that 

Chris Schiechl 
Certification No 17260 

-- 	,... 
has met the requirements of 25-7-1104, C.R.S. and Air Quality Control 
Commissjon Regulation No 19, and is hereby certified by the state d1 

-' 	,o--  Colorado in the ftllowing discipline: 	- -.,„, 

Inspector/Risk Assessor* 

*-1 
Issued: 3/13/2013 

Expires on: 3/13/2014 

* This certificate is valid only with the possession of a valid lead-based paint training certificate in the discipline 
specified aboVq; issued by either a Colorado approved troMiug provider, an EPA approved training provider, or a 
training provider approved by another EPA authorized program. 

A orized APCD Representative 

4/.1 	./pa 	4. 	114,1*  / 	le 1,0,11,2.1.1. 	10,1,1a, 	. A ° . 	...at,. Ft11. . .... 	. . ... 	.. 	. 	. 	. .... , ....... 	... 	4-'20.-'4"1"./..41__'1'-.M. 	At i.041: 114.1.0INVI.. 	I 	I.' ..... ....... 

SEAL 

'%,120011, 0„, s ;Al 

, 	 , 4 	 1415S1 , 

7.4cA 	
542Z,e,f $1. Itlar  Age. 	 1:07 

1 Ate ,41:6 1y  ce 
tot 

424- 	Sirk„." 



A7107:—: 
.141, 

, ifi,Vo. 

fir 

4 	y 

1.4■■: 

11 -4:161":1-7,1 	Attk.-R7e..4!I e!.+745r..*AVAIIIRTERTMA, 	 WAN.  trtlYzi! 	t: Mit!. Y457..taittUffliagilffrialfirfe.M717A9.0 ,,,,,, 	, - 	, 	,,, 

Colorado Department 
of Public Health 
and Environment 

Lead Evaluation Firm Certificate 
This certifies that 

Weecycle Environmental Consulting Inc. 

LEF No.: 12189 

has met the requirements of 25-7-1104, C.R.S. and Air Quality 
Control Commission Regulation No. 19, and is hereby certified by 

the state of Colorado to perform lead-based paint evaluation 
activities in the state of Colorado. 

Issued: 	September 25, 2013 

Expires: 	September 25, 2014 

thorized APCD epres ntative 

SEAL 

',41%.(41",..42`10 11" :......;:,1116k041Al'ititer::.+-sfa 	'147- 	 'TT 	-)4' 	.. 449 	6.144 

fi 

use.letsww ■Mrstlef• 111+11Trinin 

4,,:417t4, 	4.FP*110 



Reading No Time COMPONENT SUBSTRATE SIDE CONDITION COLOR ROOM TYPE SITE/ADDRESS Results PbC

2 1/10/2014 14:38 CALIBRATE Positive 1

3 1/10/2014 14:39 CALIBRATE Positive 1

4 1/10/2014 14:39 CALIBRATE Null 1

5 1/10/2014 14:40 CALIBRATE Null 0.9

6 1/10/2014 14:41 CALIBRATE Positive 1

7 1/10/2014 14:44 WALL WOOD A DETERIORATED GREY EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0.01

8 1/10/2014 14:45 TRIM WOOD A DETERIORATED WHITE EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0.08

9 1/10/2014 14:45 WALL WOOD B DETERIORATED GREY EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0

10 1/10/2014 14:45 WALL WOOD C DETERIORATED GREY EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0

11 1/10/2014 14:46 WALL WOOD D DETERIORATED GREY EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0

12 1/10/2014 14:46 TRIM WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0

13 1/10/2014 14:46 DOOR CASING WOOD C DETERIORATED GREY EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0.02

14 1/10/2014 14:47 DOOR WOOD C DETERIORATED WHITE EXT SHED 101 Marchant St Positive 13.2

15 1/10/2014 14:47 DOOR WOOD C DETERIORATED BROWN INT SHED 101 Marchant St Positive 23.7

16 1/10/2014 14:48 WALL WOOD B DETERIORATED WHITE INT SHED 101 Marchant St Negative 0.1

17 1/10/2014 14:48 WALL WOOD B DETERIORATED GREY INT SHED 101 Marchant St Positive 7.5

18 1/10/2014 14:49 WALL WOOD A DETERIORATED GREY EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.13

19 1/10/2014 14:50 DOOR WOOD A DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.01

20 1/10/2014 14:50 TRIM WOOD A DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 8.3

21 1/10/2014 14:50 TRIM WOOD B DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.05

22 1/10/2014 14:51 WALL WOOD B DETERIORATED GREY EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.01

23 1/10/2014 14:52 WALL WOOD C DETERIORATED GREY EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0

24 1/10/2014 14:52 TRIM WOOD C DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 20.2

25 1/10/2014 14:53 TRIM WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 3.4

26 1/10/2014 14:53 WALL WOOD D DETERIORATED GREY EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.02

27 1/10/2014 14:54 DOOR CASING WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 17.9

28 1/10/2014 14:54 DOOR WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 8.1

29 1/10/2014 14:54 WNDW CASING WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 9.5

30 1/10/2014 14:55 WNDW FRAME WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.3

31 1/10/2014 14:55 WNDW FRAME WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.23

32 1/10/2014 14:55 WNDW FRAME WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE EXT.GARAGE 101 Marchant St Negative 0.6

33 1/10/2014 14:57 WALL WOOD B DETERIORATED WHITE INT. GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 9.1

34 1/10/2014 14:58 WALL WOOD D DETERIORATED WHITE INT. GARAGE 101 Marchant St Positive 10.1

35 1/10/2014 15:02 CALIBRATE Positive 1

101 Marchant St. Black Hawk, CO. 80422            City of Black Hawk            WEC# 14-09836

XRF Model# XLp301A     Serial# 25097      Sourced: 6/1/2013

Inpector: Chris Schiechl          Cert.# 17260     Exp. 3/13/2014



Reading No Time COMPONENT SUBSTRATE SIDE CONDITION COLOR ROOM TYPE SITE/ADDRESS Results PbC

101 Marchant St. Black Hawk, CO. 80422            City of Black Hawk            WEC# 14-09836

XRF Model# XLp301A     Serial# 25097      Sourced: 6/1/2013

Inpector: Chris Schiechl          Cert.# 17260     Exp. 3/13/2014

36 1/10/2014 15:02 CALIBRATE Positive 1

37 1/10/2014 15:03 CALIBRATE Positive 1



City of Black Hawk 
101 Marchant St. – ASB Report 

 

WEECYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

5375 Western Avenue, Suite B   211 Haggerty Lane, Suite D 
Boulder, Colorado 80301    Bozeman, MT 59715 
(303) 413-0452   Fax (303) 413-0710  (406) 548- 5450  
 
January 22, 2014 
 

Cindy Linker 
City of Black Hawk 
PO BOX 68 
Black Hawk, CO 80422 
 

Re: PLM analysis for the out buildings at 101 Marchant St., Black Hawk, CO 80422 
(the property) 
 
Dear Ms. Linker: 
 
On January 10, 2014, Chris Schiechl, a certified Colorado State Asbestos Inspector, 
collected and submitted for analysis three (3) samples of suspected asbestos-containing 
material (ACM) from the property.   
 
SUMMARY OF SAMPLED AREAS AND MATERIALS 

 Roofing Material – Garage and Shed  

 Window Putty – Garage 
 

No building materials were determined to be asbestos-containing. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND SUMMARY 
 
Suspect materials are sometimes located behind walls and above ceilings and were 
considered inaccessible during the onsite survey. Therefore, all materials that contain 
asbestos may not have been observed or sampled.  If additional suspect asbestos 
containing materials are identified during periods of disturbances, all activities must stop 
until these materials are sampled. Work shall not resume until the results are reported 
and removal by a licensed asbestos abatement contractor. 
 

ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES 
 

The bulk samples collected of suspect asbestos containing materials were delivered to 
Reservoirs Environmental, Inc, a National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program 
(NVLAP) asbestos laboratory, located in Denver, Colorado for analysis with a 2 hour 
turnaround time. All bulk samples are archived for six months unless otherwise 
stipulated by the client. 
 
According to the laboratory, the bulk samples were analyzed in accordance with EPA 
Method 600/R-93/116. Small portions of the sample were placed in Series: E High 
Dispersion Refractive Index Liquid on a microscope slide. The prepared samples were 
observed at 100X (power) under polarized light using a McCrone Dispersion Staining 
Objective. The characteristics of the fibers were compared to the known properties of 
asbestos fibers for dispersion, color, polarity, extinction and general morphology. 



City of Black Hawk 
101 Marchant St. – ASB Report 

 

Sample content (percentage) was made by visual estimates comparing of asbestos 
fibers to total sample material. If the laboratory detects asbestos in a sample of a 
particular homogeneous material, the remaining samples in that batch are not analyzed, 
and are assumed to contain asbestos. Samples returning Trace Asbestos (TR) results 
were resubmitted for Point Count analysis. Samples with Point Count results of less than 
one percent (1%) are not considered to be ACM.   
 
All three (3) samples obtained from the Property were analyzed.  
 
Weecycle has assigned Job # 14-09836 and Reservoirs Report # 279473-1 to this study.  
Weecycle Environmental Consulting, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to assist you with 
your asbestos sampling needs. If you have questions regarding this report, please 
contact Lauren York at (303) 413-0452. 
 
This is not a complete AHERA Asbestos Survey for renovation or demolition. 
 
The laboratory report is enclosed. 

Submitted By: 
 
    
  
Lauren York 
State of Colorado Asbestos Inspector #3748 
 



) 

Issued: 2/5/2013 

Expires on: 2/5/2014 

P.  

) 

	

'46•;;;;; ::\<Notcp.• vve,•,00: Nomitop. qq".41, 0660 	qt044,4,4% 
•;•;re 	tK41e4  ;90 	 for.: 

044 ,NONt14101/k4j1 411. • 

1;44 /4440010 	Pet el WO 4‘,0 §4:0
0 gi "Irk i$14„111,/1„al.,444: 

	
/10:1,tt?"4:°%41 

	

111, 	
WOW' 	

14114&'' 	 k 	 ---- 44*  
lk,,• •  

	

■44.W 	 4,14k 	 4,14e0.42=C:40
f.•  

14, 1,14 	
44 1, 11 44,,Z1 

004  

STATE OF COLORADO ( 

ASBESTOS 
CERTIFICATION* 

Colorado Department of Public Health 
and Environment 

Air Pollution Control Division 

■■•:*: 
dotrArzi.--a: ._ 

1•StraSE:7:7=i-  - ,.., ,.......,_-.....z.t.--:•,:t* 
'ir,••■•■%.--,:4,-.4.----: 

4--  ---t-' .. • .... ..-- ---: . . 
4,4,.......-.0,:,,,‘r .....0 ,,,,.. 0.05,tr..0 

"400,fr0 

This certifies that 

Chris Schiechi 

Certification No: 15586 

has met the requirements of 25-7-507, C.R.S. and Air Quality Control 
) Commission Regulation No. 8, Part B, and is hereby certified by the 

state of Colorado in the following discipline: 

Building Inspector* 

Au prized PCD Representative 

* This certificate is valid only with the possession of a current Division-approved training course 
certification in the discipline specified above. 

•-•■ 10.4.0.1.0.10,1"0^4001.11",11.11101.11.10.141.60"/"...1.10.04...1.4.0., 0....1.01MA■1..140.0,1"."1.11.41+1.0.10.00,"0.00111.01/...,,,"1111.111.0.001.01110.61A% 171  .011,11.10.4 	1,1,;! 	 . 	A 	!PI •P•111:ZI A 	A • !iisr.rifi,,Z,1$ 	• A, 	r,:11  1 	111. 





Reservoirs Environmental, Inc.                                                                                       

Reservoirs Environmental QA Manual

Effective January 1, 2013

T:\QAQC\Lab\Reservoirs Environmental QA Manual.doc

Subcontract Number: NA

Laboratory Report: RES 279473-1

Project # / P.O. # 14-09836 - City Black Hawk

Project Description: 101 Marchant St.

RES 279473-1

Sincerely,

is the job number assigned to this study.  This report is considered highly confidential 

and the sole property of the customer. Reservoirs Environmental, Inc. will not discuss any part of this study with

personnel other than those of the client. The results described in this report only apply to the samples analyzed.

This report must not be used to claim endorsement of products or analytical results by NVLAP or any agency of the

U.S. Government. This report shall not be reproduced except in full, without written approval from Reservoirs

Environmental, Inc. Samples will be disposed of after sixty days unless longer storage is requested. If you have any

questions about this report, please feel free to call 303-964-1986.

Jeanne Spencer

President

January 17, 2014

Dear Customer,

Reservoirs Environmental, Inc. is an analytical laboratory accredited for the analysis of Industrial Hygiene and

Environmental matrices by the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program (NVLAP), Lab Code 101896-0

for Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM) and Polarized Light Microscopy (PLM) analysis and the American

Industrial Hygiene Association (AIHA), Lab ID 101533 - Accreditation Certificate #480 for Phase Contrast

Microscopy (PCM) analysis. This laboratory is currently proficient in both Proficiency Testing and PAT programs

respectively. 

Reservoirs Environmental, Inc. has analyzed the following samples for asbestos content as per your request. The

analysis has been completed in general accordance with the appropriate methodology as stated in the attached

analysis table. The results have been submitted to your office.

Weecycle Environmental

5375 Western Ave. Suite B

Boulder CO 80301

Lauren York

P: 303-964-1986

F: 303-477-4275

 5801 Logan Street, Suite 100 Denver, CO 80216

Page 1 of 2

 1-866-RESI-ENV

www.reilab.com



Reservoirs Environmental, Inc.                                                                                       

Reservoirs Environmental QA Manual

Effective January 1, 2014

T:\QAQC\Lab\Reservoirs Environmental QA Manual.doc

TABLE     PLM BULK ANALYSIS, PERCENTAGE COMPOSITION BY VOLUME

RES Job Number:

Client:

Client Project Number / P.O.:

Client Project Description:

Date Samples Received:

Method: ND=None Detected

Turnaround: TR=Trace, <1% Visual Estimate

Date Analyzed: Trem-Act=Tremolite-Actinolite

Client Non Non-

Sample Sub Asbestos Fibrous

Number Physical Part Fibrous Components
Description (%) Mineral Visual Components (%)

Estimate (%) (%)

0983611014 RM1-1 EM 1098477 A White/black shingle 100 ND 20 80

0983611014 RM2-2 EM 1098478 A Black fibrous material 100 ND 55 45

0983611014 WP1-3 EM 1098479 A White resinous material w/ white/brown paint 100 ND 0 100

     TEM Analysis recommended for organically bound material (i.e. floor tile) if PLM results are <1%.

Analyzed by: Data QA:

RESERVOIRS ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.
NVLAP Lab Code 101896-0

TDH Licensed Laboratory # 30-0136

ID Number

L

A

Y

E

R

Lab

3-5 Day

RES 279473-1

14-09836 - City Black Hawk

Weecycle Environmental

Asbestos Content

January 13, 2014

101 Marchant St.

EPA 600/R-93/116 - Short, Bulk

January 16, 2014

P: 303-964-1986

F: 303-477-4275

 5801 Logan Street, Suite 100 Denver, CO 80216

Page 2 of 2

 1-866-RESI-ENV

www.reilab.com



RES 279473 

Page  1  of  L.  
11-7c- 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 

Due Date:  k  
Due Time: 	  Ft SE I L-eskiMPI --espippeew-- 

Pager : 303409-2098 

INVOICE TO: (IF DIFFERENT 

—L_  ASBESTOS LABORATORY HOURS: Weekdays: 7am 7prn 

Metal(s)/ Dust 

RCRA B I Metals & Welding 
Fume Scan / TCLP 

Organics 

RUSH 	24 hr. 	3-5 Day 
notification Is 

RUSH 	5 day 	10 day 	required for RUSH 
turnarounds." 

24 hr. 	3 day 	5 Day 

Date/Time: 

T.) Carrier: Date/Time: 	 1-) 

C"aParrf 	Weecycle Environmental company: c`rdsc" Chris Schlechl Contact 

"dm"' 	5375 Western Ave. Suite B Address: P"°°. 	303-859-0830 Phonic 

Boulder, CO 80301 FI'''' 	303-413-0710 Faic 

3 corpaipc 	303-859-0830 CO/pager 

Proisct Number wicks' P.O. a 	pi ...._ r..)  9  43, 	— 	c rt.., 	1374wA 1--14-0; IC 
Final Data Daliverabio Erne! Address: 

weecycleameecycle-env.com  Project OsecriptionLocabon: 	I 0 i 	MAR_ clIA,.../7- 	s—e 

PLM I PCM I TEM 	 RUSH (Same Day) 	PRIORITY (Next Day) STAND 
(Rush PCM ■ 2hr, TEM • 6hr.) 

CHEMISTRY LABORATORY HOURS: Weekdays: Sam - 5pm 

MICROBIOLOGY LABORATORY HOURS: Weekdays: 9arn - 6pm  
E.coll 0157:H7, Coliforms, S.aureus 	 24 hr. _2 Day 	3-6 Day 

Salmonella, Listens, E.coll, APC, Y & M 	 48 Hr. 	3-5 Day 

Mold 	 RUSH _24 Hr 48 Hr 3 Day 5 Day 

"Turnaround times ettabilsh s laboratory priority, subject to laboratory volume and are not guaranteed. Additional fees 
apply for artarhours, weekends and holldaye.** 

Special Instructions: Please call Chris t  303-85S-0830 with all Rush Results 

Client sample ID number 	(Sample ID's must be unique) 

09s-  gC,Itoilf Amt.-  
LP1-z 

lAJP1- 3 

Time 
Collected 
hhlmm alp 

REQUESTED ANALYSIS 
Bulk =  

Paint a P 
Wipe = W 

F r Food 

Waste Water • WW 

LAB NOTES: 

EM Number 
(Laboratory Use Only) 

VALID MATRIX CODES 
Air = A 

Dust • D  

Soil = S 

Swab • SW 

Drinking Water = DW 

S 

3 

O 

o  

0 

2 

I O 

MICROBIOLOGY 

a 
J 

a 

3 

S 

)- 

S
A

M
P

L
E

R
S

 I 

0 

0 = Other 
—ASTM E1792 approved wipe media only" 

2 

4 

Sample Condition: 	On Ice 	SealedCtact 
Temp. (F0) 	 Yes / No 	Yes / No 	Yes 4 NO 

Date 	 Time 	 Initials 

Date 	 Time 	 Initials 

7-2011_version 

Relinquished By:  
Laboratory Use Only 
Received By:  
Results: Contact 

Contact 

Phone Email Fax Date Time Initials Contact Phone Email Fax 

Phone Email Fax Date Time Initials Contact Phone Email Fax 



RESOLUTION 11-2014, A 

RESOLUTION 

CONDITIONALLY 

APPROVING A 

CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR 

THE SITE WORK, 

LANDSCAPE, AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF A 

NEW GREENHOUSE FOR 

THE PROPERTY AT 301 

CHASE STREET 



 

1 
 2/20/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\FORM-RES.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 COUNTY OF GILPIN 

 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

 Resolution No. _11_-2014 
 

TITLE: A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR THE FOR SITE WORK, LANDSCAPE AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW GREENHOUSE FOR THE PROPERTY AT 

301 CHASE STREET 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

Section 1.   The City Council hereby determines to conditionally approve a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for the site work, landscape and construction of a new greenhouse for the 

property located at 301 Chase Street on satisfaction of the following condition:     

 

Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three Gables 

Preservation and Consilium Partners.   

 

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jeanie M. Magno, CMC, City Clerk 



MACK HAWK 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 	 February 26, 2014 

SUBJECT: 
Certificate of Appropriateness for Site Work, Landscaping and Construction of a New 
Greenhouse 
The applicant, Larry Linker, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for site work, landscaping and construction of a new greenhouse at 301 Chase Street. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
The applicant, Larry Linker, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for site work, landscaping and construction of a new greenhouse at 301 Chase Street. 

The estimated date of construction for the house at 301 Chase is 1890. It was first evaluated in 
1986 when the National Park Service conducted a survey of historic resources in the 
communities of Black Hawk, Central City, and Nevadaville. In 1991, when Black Hawk was 
added to an expanded National Historic Landmark district, 301 Chase Street was counted as a 
"contributing" building to the historic district, meaning it had retained sufficient integrity to 
contribute to the historic character of the district. In 2010-2011, a re-survey and evaluation of 
the historic district found that the residence still retained its historic integrity, and was a 
"contributing" building in the National Historic Landmark district. 

The proposed site work and greenhouse are located on parcels that were historically separate 
from the house at 301 Chase Street. Historic photographs show that a one-and-a-half story 
residence with a one-story side wing was located east of the present house. This building was 
demolished prior to the 1986 survey and 1991 NHL district (likely in the 1930s), and the parcel 
has been vacant for decades. While the property has received previous City grants for 
rehabilitation, this project is not grant-funded. 

The applicant is requesting approval of the following work, which requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness: 

• Construct a new aluminum frame greenhouse at the eastern edge of property. 
• Construct five planting berms in side yard. 
• Install small native grass area and xeriscape planting with drip irrigation used until plants 

are established (see Attachment B. "Planting Plan.") 



RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends to the Board of Aldermen CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the Certificate of 
Appropriateness for site work, landscape and construction of a new greenhouse for the property 
at 301 Chase Street based on the criteria set forth in the staff report dated February 18, 2014. 
The Certificate of Appropriateness application for 301 Chase Street meets the intent of the 
criteria outlined in Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Sections 2 and 9 of 
the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines with the following conditions: 

1. Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three 
Gables Preservation and Consilium Partners. 

RESOLUTION DATE: 	 February 26, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY: 	 Community Planning and 
Development 

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: 	 Cynthia L. Linker 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 	 Staff Report and Attachments A-F 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: 	 [ ] Yes [X] No [ ] N/A 
INITIALS 

SUBMITTED BY: 	 REVIEWED BY:  

02/19/14 
Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D 	 Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 



 

1

 
CITY OF BLACK HAWK    Date prepared:     February 18, 2014 
PLANNING / LAND USE    Meeting Date:       February 26, 2014  

STAFF REPORT: 
For:     City Council 
Project: Certificate of Appropriateness for Site Work, Landscaping and 

Construction of a New Greenhouse  
Property Address: 301 Chase Street 
Property Owner: Larry Linker 
Zoning:  Historic Residential (HR) 
Prepared by:  Deon Wolfenbarger, Historic Preservation Consultant 
Approved by:  Cynthia Linker, City of Black Hawk, CP&D   

BACKGROUND 
The applicant, Larry Linker, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for site work, landscaping and construction of a new greenhouse at 301 Chase Street.    

The estimated date of construction for the house at 301 Chase is 1890.  It was first evaluated in 
1986 when the National Park Service conducted a survey of historic resources in the 
communities of Black Hawk, Central City, and Nevadaville.  In 1991, when Black Hawk was 
added to an expanded National Historic Landmark district, 301 Chase Street was counted as a 
contributing building to the historic district, meaning it had retained sufficient integrity to 

contribute to the historic character of the district.  In 2010-2011, a re-survey and evaluation of 
the historic district found that the residence still retained its historic integrity, and was a 
contributing building in the National Historic Landmark district.    

The proposed site work and greenhouse are located on parcels that were historically separate 
from the house at 301 Chase Street.  Historic photographs show that a one-and-a-half story 
residence with a one-story side wing was located east of the present house.  This building was 
demolished prior to the 1986 survey and 1991 NHL district (likely in the 1930s), and the parcel 
has been vacant for decades.  While the property has received previous City grants for 
rehabilitation, this project is not grant-funded.    

The applicant is requesting approval of the following work, which requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness: 

 

Construct a new aluminum frame greenhouse at the eastern edge of property. 

 

Construct five planting berms in side yard. 

 

Install small native grass area and xeriscape planting with drip irrigation used until plants 
are established (see Attachment B. Planting Plan. )     



 

2

 
  APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS   
Excerpt from: 

City of Black Hawk Zoning Code 
Chapter 16 

Section 16-368, City Council historic review process  

16-368: Anyone seeking to renovate the exterior of, add to or construct a new building 
shall be subject to the following procedures. Any such renovation construction 
or demolition shall be subject to the City s design standards.     

f.   Criteria for determining appropriateness of proposed erection, construction,    
reconstruction or alteration. In determining the appropriateness of a proposed    
site plan or building permit for the erection, construction or alteration of a    
building, the HPC and the City Council shall consider the following:  

1. All plans, drawings and photographs as may be submitted by the applicant; 
The photographs and scope of work submitted by the applicant adequately describes the 
proposed alterations.  (See Attachments B - F).  

2. Information presented at a public hearing held concerning the proposed work; 
Findings and recommendation from Historic Preservation Commission will be presented 
to the Board of Aldermen at the Public Hearing scheduled for February 26, 2014.    

3. The purpose of this Chapter; 
The information received adequately describes the proposed work in order to determine 
the appropriateness of the proposed rehabilitation.  

4. Compliance with the Black Hawk Municipal Code and the payment of all fees required 
by the Black Hawk Municipal Code; 
The project complies with all regulations of the Municipal Code.    

5. The historical and architectural style, the general design, arrangement, texture, 
materials, and color of the development, building or structure in question or its 
appurtenance fixtures; the relationship of such features to similar features of the other 
buildings within the City and the position of the building, structure, park or open space 
in relation to public right-of-way and to other buildings and structures in the City; 
The proposed work will be located on a parcel that has been vacant for decades.  Any 
new construction of significant size or scale would automatically be considered non-
contributing, while small scale work would not affect the district in any manner.     



 

3

   
6. The effects of the proposed work upon the protection, enhancement, perpetuation and 

use of the City which cause it to possess a special character or special historical or 
aesthetic interest or value; and 
The house at 301 Chase Street was re-evaluated in 2010-2011 and determined 
contributing to the National Historic Landmark historic district.  Any new construction 

of significant size would automatically be considered non-contributing, although this is 
not an indication that new construction should not be allowed within a historic district.  
An 8 x 8 greenhouse would likely be considered too small to be included in the resource 
count.  Nonetheless, HPC should review the proposed alterations and evaluate their effect 
for their potential impact on the overall historic character of the district.    

7. The design standards for the City. 
Sections 2. Site Design; and 9. New Garages and Accessory Structures of the City of 
Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines adopted in 2011 apply to this application.  
Listed below are the applicable sections, and the consultant s evaluation for compliance 
of the proposed alterations for 301 Chase Street.   

Excerpt from:  
City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines 

2.  Site Design 
2.1   Site design  

2.2.1.   Respect historic settlement patterns and traditional patterns of building    
alignment and orientation.  

2.2   Topography and Grade  
2.2.1  Existing topography should be maintained whenever possible.  
2.2.3.  Minimize cut and fill that would alter the natural topography of the site. 

              b.  use earth berms, rock forms, or stone retaining walls to minimize the     
visual impacts of cuts.  

2.2.5.   All land that is visible from a public way shall be reclaimed in a manner    
described below.   

a.   Preferred reclamation methods are:  

 

Plantings, as provided in the landscape standards. 

 

Natural rock, in a stable condition. 

 

Concrete retaining walls faced with native stone or appropriate 
wood cribbing.  

2.2.7.  Preserve views of scenic, historic and natural features.   
A.  Position buildings on the site to maintain significant view corridors.   



 

4

 
2.5.  Landscaping  

2.5.1.   Maintain established plantings on site.  
2.5.2.   Protect established vegetation near to any construction to avoid damage.  
2.5.3.   Incorporate plant materials in new landscape designs.  

Evaluation of proposal s compliance with Section 2: 
The following elements of the site plan meet the design guidelines:  The new greenhouse 
respects historic settlement patterns, building alignment, and orientation.  Earth berms are used 
to minimize the visual impacts of cuts.  The publicly visible land is reclaimed with plantings.  
The new greenhouse does not impact views of scenic, historic and natural features.  Finally, plant 
materials are incorporated into a new landscape design.  The drip irrigation system is temporary; 
to be used only until the plants are established.   The proposed plant selection may change based 
on availability.  However, the design guidelines do not specify preferences for individual plant 
species, thus any changes that may occur would likely meet the intent of the design guidelines.   

9. New Garages and Accessory Structures 
9.2   Accessory Structures  

9.1.1  1. Minimize the visual impact of new accessory structures.   
a.  New accessory structures should generally be located at the rear of     

the lot.   
b.  New accessory structures should be subordinate to the house and     

garage in size and scale.   
c.  Materials should be compatible with those found on the primary     

structure and those found throughout the district.   

Evaluation of proposal s compliance with Section 9: 
The following element of the proposal meets the design guidelines:  The new accessory structure 
is subordinate to the house and any neighboring garage in size and scale.  The following 
elements of the proposal do not meet the design guidelines:  the accessory structure is not located 
at the rear of the lot, and the metal framing is not found on the primary structure.  However, as is 
often the case in Black Hawk, there is no buildable site at the rear of house at 301 Chase Street.   
The proposed location for the greenhouse has been a vacant lot for several decades, and would 
not negatively impact the historic district.   Furthermore, the materials used on the greenhouse 
(metal and glass) are typical of those found on historic greenhouses.  The small size of the 
greenhouse (8 x 8 ) will not have a negative impact on either the vacant lot, or the overall 
character of the historic district.   



 

5

 
CONSULTANT COMMENTS 
The following work requires a Certificate of Appropriateness: 

 
Construct a new aluminum frame greenhouse at the eastern edge of property. 

 
Construct five planting berms in side yard. 

 
Install small native grass area and xeriscape planting with drip irrigation used until plants 
are established (see Attachment B. Planting Plan. )    

The consultant s evaluation of the proposal finds that all elements of the proposed work are in 
accordance with the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines.  

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
The Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) evaluated the application, the comments in the 
report, and testimony by staff, consultants, and the applicant. The Commission discussed if there 
was sufficient evidence the Certificate of Appropriateness application met the intent of the 
criteria outlined in the Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Sections 2 and 9 
of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines.    

At the conclusion of its discussion, the Historic Preservation Commission recommended to the 
Board of Aldermen CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the Certificate of Appropriateness for site 
work, landscape and construction of a new greenhouse for the property at 301 Chase Street based 
on the criteria set forth in the staff report dated February 18, 2014.  The Certificate of 
Appropriateness application for 301 Chase Street met the intent of the criteria outlined in Section 
16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Sections 2 and 9 of the City of Black Hawk 
Residential Design Guidelines with the following condition:  

1.   Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three   
Gables Preservation and Consilium Partners.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends to the Board of Aldermen CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the Certificate of 
Appropriateness for site work, landscape and construction of a new greenhouse for the property 
at 301 Chase Street based on the criteria set forth in the staff report dated February 18, 2014.  
The Certificate of Appropriateness application for 301 Chase Street meets the intent of the 
criteria outlined in Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Sections 2 and 9 of 
the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines with the following condition:  

1.   Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three   
Gables Preservation and Consilium Partners.    

ATTACHMENTS 

 

A:  Cultural Resource Evaluation Form 

 

B:  Photographs - Existing Conditions 

 

C:  Plantings Plan  

 

D:  Site Plan - Greenhouse Location 

 

E:  Monticello Greenhouse Spec Sheet 

 

F:  Nursery Cut Sheets - Proposed Plants 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 
the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for Exterior Landscaping Improvements with an 
Outbuilding for 301 Chase Street. This property is described in Exhibit A below and is 
generally located at 301 Chase Street.  

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 
Wednesday, February 26, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter.  The public 
hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 
Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 
hearings are adjourned.  

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  
MAY ATTEND  

Jeanie Magno 
City Clerk  

Exhibit A  

301 Chase Street 

   

   
S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 016 Lot: 006, Subd: BLACK HAWK 
Block: 015 Lot: 001 AND:- Lot: 002 & IMPS (PT OF LOT 6 AS DESC IN 
BOUNDARY AGREEMENT #148950 & LOT 2 #149919) 



 BLACK HAWK CULTURAL RESOURCE SURVEY     

 Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form    

 (page 1 of 2) 
 
 

1. Current Address:  301 Chase 
 

2. Resource Number:  5GL.7.443                                                                 3.  NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
 
4. Resource Name:                                                                                         

5. Purpose of this current site visit (check as many as apply) 

         Site is within a current project area 

   X    Resurvey 

   X    Update of previous site form(s) 
         Surface collection 
          Testing to determine eligibility 
         Excavation 
         Other 

  

6. Previous Recordings:  

   X     1986 National Park Service Survey    X    Photograph 

   X     1991 National Historic Landmark Nomination      No Photographs                    X    Contributing  

   X      1998 Re-survey    X    Photograph 

   X      2004 Photo survey    X    Photograph   

            Other:            Photograph 

  

7. Exterior alterations since 1986:   1996 – Historic preservation, permit valuation $16,212.69, included new 

deck balustrade.  2008 - Rock wall demolished.   

 

8. Additional historical background:  Sanborn maps do not cover this far west on Chase Street.  This house is 

visible in historic photographs purportedly from ca. 1910, which show a small shed attached on the SE 

corner of the house.  Deed research may reveal a more accurate construction date. 
 

 

 

    Ca. 1890    Construction date     X      Estimate from 1986 NPS Survey          New estimate 

Sources of information: Digital Image Collection, Western History & Genealogy, Denver Public Library; 
The Gilpin Railroad Era (Abbot) 

 Sanborn Maps 

        1886   

        1890 

        1895 

        1900



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                     (page 2 of 2) 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 

     

9. Changes to Location or Size Information: None. 

 

10. Revised National Historic Landmark District- Contributing Building Eligibility Assessment:  

 Contributing   X         Non contributing              Need data    

 

11. National Register - Individual Eligibility Assessment: 

 Eligible            Not eligible    X          Need data   

 

12.  Is there National Register district potential?  Yes  X         No              

 Discuss: This would be a contributing building to a potential district 

 

13. Local Designation - Individual Eligibility Assessment:  

 Eligible   X         Not eligible              Need data       

 

14.  Is there Local district potential?  Yes   X       No              

 Discuss: This would be a contributing building to a potential district 

 

15. Photograph Types and Numbers: Digital, <.jpg> format.  301 Chase-1.JPG, 301 Chase-2.JPG 

 

16. Report Title: Black Hawk Historic Resource Resurvey:  2009-2010 

 

17. Recorder(s):  Deon Wolfenbarger 18. Date(s): May 17, 2010 

 

19. Recorder Affiliation: Three Gables Preservation 

 

20. Attachments                     21. Official determination  
 (check as many as apply)             (OAHP USE ONLY) 
   X   Photographs         Determined Eligible 
        Site sketch map         Determined Not Eligible 
        U.S.G.S. map photocopy         Need Data 

   X   Other                                 Nominated 
        Other                                 Listed 
             Contributing to N.R. District 
             Not Contributing to N.R. Dist 



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
Current Photographs 

Date:  05/13/2009 & 1/21/2010 

 

 
 

 



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
 

2004 Photograph 
 

 
 

 
 



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 

 
1998 Resurvey Photograph 

 

 
 

 
1986 Survey Photograph 

 

 



 

Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
 

Gilpin Assessor’s Photographs 

  
 

 
 

Historic photograph 

 
Ca. 1910 



Attachment B:  301 Chase Street Photographs 

Historic photograph 

 
Ca. 1910 

 

Existing conditions 

 
Looking NE from Chase Street 

 



 

 
Looking NE from SE corner of house  

 

 
 

Looking east. Arrow indicates approximate location of greenhouse (behind stone wall) 

 



LIQK 
, 	P-6tvef=7. 

N6r-f ujiir tZ:1) 	OLAIS ik„,1 

(I) 61  PAV-? 

6.0vtretwepsio. 

rtylltbkik-Def- 

1-4F-g-Aph3 cJ 

- 
SpizAJe.o. 

(7) 0- (. GI7CAW,L 

(-5)4.5 MAtZ_Lk 	 

1,.0*t onczt,.-A- 

(2,- 1  

b\-22- 41.eut,4F 

(at)41.
1-/oa. L.-CAC-160-4 1 

tvil4*t 
13Lue. F°4..ki 

frirno g...AA) 
6DAd:e.. 

I .  

Ca 

_ 	t*r /4kA910=e-- 

-161,.311 1 \1 L - 

-t-t x)(J- 

= tOr---ef )0" 



 

COW, CUPS 11// 
SLOPED TCP 

 

 

 

(TN ORNAMENTAL METAL GATE ON TREAD  
3/4. - 1.-o• 

(-21 CONC. SWALE DETAIL  
j 3/e - 1.-0• 

0819(1 4• SIX CPC rod 00PED 52 
10 2-25•  CAST PON AREA 120% THAT 
COPECTS TO UNCOLOROUPO [Wog( PPE. 
FE 2/M100 

TERIKOI MARIN Al NIER rerrMIMG 
MIL ON NUCOR PROPERTY 

MAKE STOLE RETPRIN4 
RING OWE STREET. RE cet 

RELOCATE DPOZD OAS SEM TO KM 
MOE TANNIC WA. RE MARC 

DELIO (E) (EX GUNIDRAL„ 16111 (N) OFOLNENTAL IETN. 
GUIROSAL AT TOP OF SIDE REOHNG WNL ALCM B0111 
ChM NO DUOS STREET OF PROPERTY, RE 4/1030 

KLEMM DAZED SNOW SEVER TO 9001 DE STELE 
91E7/I110 TO& PRONE A CANT OUT AT ME OF Kti 

SRE PLAN 	0 `10 

Mal 	 1"  10•-O •  
EMI 

Dogs slRat  
. — 

100 

NOTE AIM MATED RC OS COIALINITS 

LOX (r) CONC/0110t STOOP. 1679(1 CCM. 
101K Al EAST AV SOLMI SAS Cl HOSE 

FTEPAR/FAINQC INOSTKX MOE 
FERVOR 1011 AT EAST SIDE OF KOK 

301 CHASE STREET 
REHABILITATION 

BLACK SOL COLORADO 

NIT 11111 

COVER SHEET AND SITE PLAN 

Man WI= 	  
DAM 1/4/1113 
Maw ITO 	RP 
OKOMO ml Km 

war =NM 

A000 

(71 ORNAMENTAL METAL GUARDRAIL  

l/ •  SIM SOLO SQUARE affl 
RALLGIERS a 3-5/4•  SWAG. 
KID TO mem CF PALS 

i-l/r 09/1r CHANEL STEEL 
OK I/ MAC KAMM FOR 
%ROSTERS (3 1116) 

DRME 

I •  ROJO CONC. POST NOE AT GRACE (24*  
- OR- 
r COK 

 

DRILL IRO ORE 91E161010 IAL or CAP SOLID [ROUT) 
-OR- 
rxr11/4' FOIE W/(4) 1/4' LAO MSS KIO TCP OF CONC. 

45-0713 (CAST RCN FRILL 
VELD TO PNAISITDIS 

45-118 (CAST ROTE saige IE1Q P3St FALL), 
11111) TO POST 

CLISMI1 RIVED 1/8' 3/ •  STEEL me 

r sow.% P0515 15 3/18.  
TUE • 	0 C. MAY 

fiDO9D8M-DCM: 
1. POSTSPALLISIERS, AEq KM 

RAU TO K STEEL 
2. CAT ROI FECES IRE FlY 1410 

AROMECTURAL WILE 
3. ALL COIPOKKIS TO K POURER 

COVED 81)%tcsSIMP PAWED II/ 
FAD TOUCH 	USW 

4. EQUALLY SPACE= NBC 
POLTURETIVNE 

MANI RUM 
5. KEN ON %ONO ma. 

warm_ TO BE INSTALLED 
POSTS + MOOS MIT. NI 
MA WES TO MDR TIE 
ROPE. 

RELOCATE QC METER FOR  AOMOONT 
PACARif PITS IS CNN ERIPLA TY 

REIM (0 TREE FOOS 
60013 TO 12-  SLUR' ME 
RE Cht 

TELOCATE ELEC. 1E113i 

4-
At  

---- 
TO REM OF HOUSE  — 

/ 
4 

N 

RSTALL CAS SIB FOR GEL RE 0.121000. 
NC PIER OUTLET AT PASO. RE: ELEC. 

0E201 (E) FINEMONE PAM AND 
RERRN TO COO. INSTAL (H) e 
1101 CONC. 

ABBREVIATIONS KEY  
AC. JOCK 03111004 
ATRCCL WeR013110.1111 
0,711 - FERMI 
CA- =MOM eauAnai 
• COMOVE 
COO • 01111111O18 
DENO • DOOM 
ON - COAT HMIG 

MEM 
ECONSPOUT 

(E) MVO 
EA. - 
urc. ELECIRC 
EIA • curet SEMI 
EP - mum PAAn 
F.D. • RCM DRAW 
F.F. RIMED ROM 
EC FOCROLISS LOTT 
ee. FOLICATION 
CO • DICE 
GC - CENDit CONTRACTOR 
GL - CAVACO) PON 
CN - GAS 11TER 
MP DO • CIPSUU BOND 
HA • KIM DO 
M. - if,DIT 
COAL - 0611.01D CLAM UPC 
OIR DAHLACTUREP 
Ilk • MOO 
(9) 	111111 
0t. • OR 030ER 
;en - RAW 
PT.. PRE.101C TREATED 
RE: - REFERENCE 
REF. FIEFFICERATOR 
fen REDURED 
RO. • MICR OPERIC 

- Nara OF 0(85005 
SAR • 31EF NO RCO 
94. SALM 
SO. • SMITE 
1 TOMMIE 
IC TRASH CRAM= 
TIC DINGLE MID GROOVE 
1.0.6. • TOP Cr WAL 
DP. TYROL 
URO. UMESS NOTED CIDERIIISE 
KR AMER KIRKE BARER 

• 3/4'  I 

3211 Revd SL 	 R (720) 32E-1368 
Root FA* CO 03033 	 ARRANIKoonsiutoolLox, 
JUT 04184 PE 
R (303) 239-0130 
C (303) 324-1702 
) at 

4NCHNOCAL NNW 

• puNEROC KAN  
' 	 FOLMAR SAMS  

IM • 	 DAWN  

igniAPOCAL 0E NI AND  5 0 10 0 115 0 10 0 110 5
W  

LIECTRICAL ROM PLANS Ma SITE PLAN 	

CODE ANALYSIS  
HISTORIC BUILDING  

zczkaiggpayarsiareAria Na 

FiffurrikONISTRATIVE REMAI HAS ARMED THE REM OF 
HISTOMC KNOCK OPOIRIC6 FOR EE GROS eel peva/mew OF 

HEIC IIGH-CCAIPLANT 81140016. 5/20/2011 

IECC COMPUANCE 

2007 ECC MORN RFOURELPfli AC FTIII‘Wq• 

WW1 TONE 5E1 

ODOOD&ROLL.1 R-20 OR 9-13+5 C.1. 

FteaficEg PK= 9-3e 

BSI R-30 

4NLELOM R-1C 

ALLFIRKT %411. R-13 OR R-10 C.A. 

CHAAANCEJMO.: 6-10 CL 

Offs/CLAW:  U-LNLIE - 035 

9ougui; 9-0011E - 0.60 

ENERGY COMPLIANCE  PER ETC 101.4.3 
DE SLOPED CAMS OF THE SEC= FLOOR PEED NOT MEET THE 
MTHERNAL RUE, SO LONG AS TFE C.AYITY IS FILED w/ 

MAN 

PAR CF MIXED JOINTS PAULO 
10 WSW, SO BLOC 2' INC 
TROY ME CF 

ift amerce We/9M JOINT 
RENONERE PLASTIC C/P 

12' 

TOOL NORM I/ ift 
emus SOL 

1/2' MEW DPNISICR 
JOINT II/ R.ASIX 
FOIOOKE GIP 

(-3-\ TYP. CONCRETE STEPS  
• 3/4' 

SITE PLAN GENERAL NOTES 

I. SEE ARCIRECTURAL FLOOR 
KM FOI ADOIDOWL 111/10 
OF FRONT YARD FENCKG. 
DECKIK NO HAWK 

2. KSTOK AIL COSTUMED 
GRADir. PROVIDE OMEN 
CONFROL NATI sum lag 
MITI FERRO WA 
KC RE 0%1_ 

3. REPRO/REPLACE NI. ILIRD 
COO SUFFICES 
RONNED/041142E0 10 ALL011 
IISTALIATON Cf FTC. 

4. WAAL UPOOLGROUND 
oeewa SYSTEM FCIR ROTE 
Ar OLE mega a. ow. 

A 	ellen 	
rerptfaitto;wore 

0• 3 CO IASIONON 
4 4/7.1/R515 CO 110100101I 
3 3,114/1 	SD ILIIMIONA 
2 2/20/101

03
3 cONOIPT FRAM 1-4 
5 wawa WANK  

RI 	EMI 

PEH ARCHITECTS 
1319 Spruce Street Sults 297 

Boulder, CO 80302 
303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905 

e-mall: pehelnzapeherchltects.00m 

(E) LNOSCAPED ORR PROTECT II MACE 

MOOR (E) FTAGSICIE 1OALK NO RETORT ID 
OWL 1161111. (N) 4•  NCR GLOM. MIS 



Monticello 8' x 12' 
in111111111111111111111111111. 
MORE INFORMATION 

Monticello W x 24' 
11111•11.111.111.1•11 
MORE INFORMATION 

BetterGreenhouses,.. 
Powered 	Sette,Shou•pinqUS4 corn 

HOMEPAGE • 
ABOUT US • 

service 	 CONTACT US • 
RETURN POLICY • 

Sheds Greenhouses Shelters Gazebos Hot Tubs Playhouses Playsets Doghouses Coops Hammocks 

HOMEPAGE 

POLYCARBONATE 
Americana 

Balneo 

Biostar 

Brighton 

Chalet 

Duramax 

Easy Grow 

Essence 

Flowerhouse 

Grow and Store 

Harmony 

Juliana 

Monticello 

Nature 

Rhino 

Riga 

Riga XL 

Rion 

Rose ll 

Royal Garden 

Snap and Grow 

Solexx 

Solexx Panels 

Solexx Rolls 

SunGlo 

Sunshine 

Monticello Greenhouses 

Constructed from the highest quality extruded aluminum 
(US grade — not the thinner & more brittle foreign 
aluminum) and electro-statically painted Black (guaranteed 
to contain 0.0% lead), these greenhouse uses on average 
more than 40 lbs more aluminum than the average 
imported greenhouse. Why is this important? The weaker 
the framework the less snow the greenhouse can hold in 
the winter time before collapsing on itself also the easier it 
will be get damages in wind. 

The Monticello uses professional grade 8mm twin wall 
polycarbonate. This is the same thickness as used in the 
commercial greenhouses. The 8mm twin wall 
polycarbonate acts as a double pain window keeping 
cooler air in during warm months and insulating the 
greenhouse from cold air in the wintertime. 

• 8mm twin wall polycarbonate wall & roof panels 
• Heavy duty commercial grade aluminum frames 
• High sidewalls: 58" 
• 48" W x 66" H double sliding door with locking ability 
• Integrated flush base frames included 
• Built in rain gutter system 
• Roof vents with auto openers 
• 10 Year warranty on the frame and polycarbonate 

panels 

Monticello 8'  r83  

MORE INFORMATION 

Monticello 8' x 20' 
goismilMob 
MORE INFORMATION 

• Easy and quick assembly (average 8 hours) 
• Expandable in 4' increments as needs grow 
• Snow load: 24 lbs. / square foot (1,536 lbs) 
• Wind load of 113 mph gusts 
• Detailed assembly manual included 
• Variety of accessories available 
• Premium packages available 
• Available in mill aluminum finish or black frame 
• Made in the USA 

Monticello r x 16' 
11111111111.111111111111111.1 
hinFir Ipirr)RmATEnN 

Monticello Features 
YouTube Video 

(Excellent Video!) 



Shown is the Monticello 8' x 8' Greenhouse 

• Easy and quick assembly (average 8 hours) 
• Expandable in 4' increments as needs grow 
• Snow load: 24 lbs. / square foot (1,536 lbs) 
• Wind load of 113 mph gusts 
• Detailed assembly manual included 
• Variety of accessories available 
• Premium package available 
• Available in mill aluminum finish or black frame 
• Dimensions: 8' W x 8' D x 7' 6" H 

.4.00 TO CART 

Ar A ;JD rocArn- 

Ar.  Ann. TO ..7.!A 

Accessories 

4' Extension 
	

Internal Shade 
	

Work Bench 
Kit 
	

Cloth System 
	

System 

HOMEPAGE • 
ABOUT US • 

CONTACT US • 
RETURN POLICY • 

BetterGreenhouses.com  
Powered by BettorShoppo,g1)54.-1- orr 

7-4 3 3 
Sales 	 Service 

Sheds Greenhouses Shelters 	Gazebos 	Hot Tubs Playhouses Plays..ets Doghouses 
	

Coops 	Hammocks 

HOMEPAGE 

POLYCARBONATE 
Americana 

Balneo 

Biostar 

Brighton 

Chalet 

Duramax 

Easy Grow 

Essence 

Flowerhouse 

Grow and Store 

Harmony 

Juliana 

Monticello 

Nature 

Rhino 

Riga 

Riga XL 

Rion 

Rose II 

Royal Garden 

Snap and Grow 

Solexx 

Solexx Panels 

Solexx Rolls 

SunGlo 

Sunshine 

Tulip House 

Monticello 8' x 8' x 7' 6" Greenhouses 

Constructed from the highest quality extruded aluminum (US grade —
not the thinner & more brittle foreign aluminum) and electro-statically 
painted Black (guaranteed to contain 0.0% lead), these greenhouses 
use on average more than 40 lbs more aluminum than the average 
imported greenhouse. Why is this important? The weaker the 
framework the less snow the greenhouse can hold in the winter time 
before collapsing on itself also the easier it will be get damages in 
wind. 

The Monticello uses professional grade 8mm twin wall polycarbonate. 
This is the same thickness as used in the commercial greenhouses. 
The 8mm twin wall polycarbonate acts as a double pain window 
keeping cooler air in during warm months and insulating the 
greenhouse from cold air in the wintertime. 

• Made in the USA 
• High sidewalls: 58" 
• Wide 48" W x 66" H double sliding door with locking ability 
• Integrated flush base frame included 
• Built in rain gutter system 
• (1) roof vent with auto opener 
• 10 Year warranty on the frame and polycarbonate panels 

Monticello 8' x 8' Greenhouse Black Frame 
1111.111.1111  

Monticello 8' x 8' Greenhouse Aluminum  Frame 
811.111111111111■11 

Monticello 4' x 8' Extension Kit Black Frame 
111~11111111111111 

Monticello 4' x 8' Extension Kit Aluminum Frame 
i11■11.11110 

Monticello 8' x 8' Greenhouse Premium Package with Aluminum 
Frame 
11•11■111111.1 

.4 on To ART 

Monticello Premium Package:  We also have available a premium package which includes internal shade cloths, a work bench 
system, an internal watering system and the potting sink.(see images of these by scrolling down). 

Monticello 8' x 8' Greenhouse Premium Package with Black Frame 

1111111111.11=1.11. 



Member Log In 

User Name: 

13 Remember User Name 

Password: 

   

 

Forgot Password? 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

• 

17•P.o u 

Ajuga reptans 'Atropurpurea' 

 

Carpet Bugle, Bronze 

   

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

Lrrru VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 The Rerery Maxim" %motor" 

13022 E. 136th Ave. Brighton CO 80601 (303) 659.6708 WM 222-3241 Fax (303) 659-6886 

Home Map Plant Info Availability 

NlalurC 116011: 4-6" 
	

∎■■ alcr RequireuicHIS: Medium 
	

How el. caifir: Blue 

vialpre Spread: 12-15" 
	

posii re: Adaptable 
	 Flower Scamur Late Spring 

Hardy to: 8,000' 

Short stalks are covered by small violet blue flowers above a dense carpet of reddish-purple foliage turtling to bronze in fall 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lvwn.corniview  slide_show.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 6:00:58 PM] 



Member Log In 
User Name: 

0 Remember User Name 

Password: 

 

L 

 

Forgot  Password? 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

• 

'ID little Ile/4-p-  Wholesele Alta-seo 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LrrnE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ike Rocky filouslairt Sksulded'" 

13022 E. 1361A Ave. 811ttfr toil CO 80601 (303) 659-6708 1800) 221.3241 Fax (303) 659-6986 

Home 

 

Plant Info 

  

Map Availability 
	A 

     

Coreopsis lanceolata 
	

Coreopsis, Lance-leaf 

NIniure I lei2h1: 18-24" 
	

mer Requirements: LOW 
	

['lower Color: Yellow 
Niailire 'spread: 18-24" 

	
sposure: Sun 
	

Ilimer Season: Early to Mid- 

Summer 
I lardy To: 8.500' 

A broad clump of slender, shiny green leaves giving rise to daisy-like bright yellow flowers. Creates a wonderful mass Cut flower 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lywn.com/view  slide_show.php?uid=276&name—Linker+-Residenee[1/2/2014 5:45:50 PM] 



Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Pro Re* Mamie& Shindad." 

13022 E. 13(0, Ave. hiolthirm CO 80601 13031 659.6708 1$5O) 221-3241 Fax (3031 659-6886 

Member Log In 
User Name: 	 Password: 

0 Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

   

Forgot Password? 

Home Map Plant Info Availability 

   

119 

p' --;•':,,..=, 	0 4%- • Y 	....■ 	. 

Aquilegia alpina 	 Columbine, Alpine 

Niato•t. 11cight: 
	 \\;d, it,00l. r,0000s: medium 	 rs'ir,11 Nue 

!Nto or(' soremi: 12- I kj" 
	

fZ•iltered Srlafle 	 loiN% 	 iv s 
Shade. 

To ,̀D,C)00' 

NOCidir10 	14)WQrS With StliDii LIAirS Dre prOdUCed 0r :-;ierOjer S1 11;: 7",irio:o-1a 3 roll ;.nound of ioundof. ;In ,Dreen foilage, 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lywn.com/viewslideshow.php?uid=276&name—Linker-FResidence[1/2/2014 5:57:03 PM] 



Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ma Roci►y iflouniain !landau!'" 

13022 E 136th Ave. Brigh ton CO 80601 0031 659-6708 (8601 221-3241 Fax 0031 659-68136 

   

Member Log In 

    

 

User Name: 

0 Remember User Name 

Password: 

     

   

Forgot Password?' 

 

  

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

    

        

        

        

Plant Info Availability 

sr 
'IP  

Papaver nudicaule 
	

Poppy, Iceland 

Nialure Wight: 1-2' 
	

". '"Cr R"iiiireMen": Medium 
	

1,101%ei odor: Mixed 

NImore Spread: 12-18" 
	

ENplitilire: Sun 
	

rIONN 	Season: Early Summer to 

Fall 

Ila•d■ I o: 10,000' 

A mounding tuft of spoon-like pale bluish-_vreen leaves casting wiry stems topped by large, saucer-like flowers in a wide array of 

colors 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lywn.com/viewslide_show.php?uid=276&name—Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 5:51:15 PM] 



t, Password: 

Forgot Password? 

User Name: 

0 Remember User Name 

Availability Map IPlant Info 

4 

%Naha- Requiremeols: Medium 

Exposure: Sun 

Populus tremuioides Clump (Nursery Grown) 

%lore height: 20-50' 

llature Spread: 20-30' 
Hard.] o: 10,000' 

Slender, twiggy branches create an open oval tree that often suckers to develop dense colonies. Waxy. white to greenish bark is 
smooth becoming brownish-black as it matures. Green, triangular leaves quiver in the breeze, turning golden in fall. Clump form. 

Slide Comment 

Aspen, Clump Quaking 

Flower Color: Silvery Gray 
Catkin 

Flower Season: Early Spring 

Home 

Member Log In 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LIME VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ike Rocky Ittosuflain Slandenr" 

13022 E. 13615 Ave. Er igh !OP CO 80601 (3031 659.6708 (13001 221-3241 Fax 0031 659-6886 

https://www.lywn.corn/viewslideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker-FResidence[1/2/2014  5:52:16 PM] 



iv mi■ - W.. 	v Ai 	!=, 
artii. 	s 	• 

	

IF or 2 	E. 

	

" •• -- ' 	 /6.' '  sue.  it ..a. ,,,, .4. -* 

	

9  -411 	•   

	

la. 1  .  I 	 le"•  a  'IN. 	• 	4,  ■I,  	4  N .- o , 	4 15.; 
4" : - r,* -- 1'  --ir  4,  -4,1  

'NI, 	,... 	
• -1  ge,  gp 010  

• P'. 1.  e • ' .'i V • 
l 

r 
iir 

.iph‘aqkz4„  

.. 	• 	11' 	AA Ab. 

	

i.  1PP 6 	‘, • . 
AI ••••• 	

.,.  • 	•  
pl 1. 4. •  

:1117 411' 2_.  • 

A e• 	s  •  Pt ' „L.-, ' 	• 	•• Os - 	'5.• 	1 
tiliP  • 	

,.."0-41  loft.  , 	..e. 	1", • 	0  . a7 7 

• 4';441:11t  A- =,-ti.0:''''r . 	
. , ,..,-. 	. ,.... _ - . 	,,,„ 4,.. .L. 	• 

- .. 	.  .... 
i 

31-. ,  . • Ev c!:, -, 
	• ....   

°

~  • • •"  e geztV -  44.2mso'n* 
, 	90 

-  4
,  1.1 	• 

0 .,  

1  

	

_ ._.......  di ..• 	 0"I'.t• ';'. _Sed.V  

Potentilla fruticosa 'Jackmannir 

   

Potentilla, Jackman 

     

Nialti re I I og h : 	- 	 \\ ART 	 1..cwv 	 111111 • Yellow 

\ I a rt. Si eem : 
	 Movkl1 SCAMPI': H•-jr• iy 	Le:11e, 

Hard ∎  .1.1: 10.000' 

'clw-& unrioht rounded shrub with slender, 	 ancl 	- ,zneeri, lobed :ei.TiveS, PriiciuceS !:irs t3r1.1riciariCc C. Single, !inch; 

yelimN tiower;: from .nriv it) :t--,itt; Surnmez. 

Slide Comment 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 i 	Password: 

0 Remember User Name 
	 Forgot Password? 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Home [Map 	Plant Info Availability 

  

   

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

4 LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ike RaIry ifloinfain Paruterti- 

13022 E. 196th Ave. Brighten CO 80601 (3031 659-6708 (800) 221.3241 Fax (303)659-6986 

t ■1 1  

https://www.lvwn.com/viewslide_show.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014  5:42:34 PM] 



Availability 

\\ ;tier 	 Ovv 

posiire.  jail 
Ahluro 

Nircad. t7-6" 
HA•d:. '1Q: 5.50e,  

SrAsoit: IVII(C-3urrirner 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 Password: 

El Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

Plant Info-1 Home Map 

Grass. Festuca glauca 'Elijah Blue' 	 Grass Elijah Blue Fescue 

povvdery blue roliacjo Ferri-is .striking clurnp,,... Tan seed 'ne;lids•  appear in S,Ilr•y 	/An 1::!xceileili contrast plant when used with 

pererwiialc.. 

Slide Comment 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ma Rs* illoosishe Vanded- 

13022 E. 136th Aro. Elpigh an CO 84631 1301 09-6708 (SOW 221-3241 Far 1303) 659-6886 

https://www.hiwn.com/viewslideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/20l4  5:38:00 PM] 



Availability 

4- 

Flosser Color: Blue 
Flower Season: Mid to Late 

Summer 

%Nate'.  Requirements: Very Low 

lAposure: Sun 
Nlaiure Height: 3-4' 

Mature Spread: 3-4' 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 f 	Password: 

❑ Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

Home Map Plant Info 

   

Perovskia atriplicifolia 	 Sage, Russian 

Hardy To: 8,500' 

Small, rich blue flowers circle branched spikes rising during mid to late summer on erect slender, downy white stems bearing fragrant, 

finely cut, grayish-green leaves. Forms an open rounded shrub. 

Slide Comment 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ihe Rocky itioaniaim Skoktant- 

13022 E 136th Ave. $11911013 CO 80601 OOP 659-6708 MO 221-3241 Fax (303) 659-6886 

https://www.lmn.corniview_slideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 5:36:45 PM] 



Home Map 	Plant Info Availability 

4 

N Louie IICI2IIL 
Mahiri,  

t'olor: Blue 
er Season: Mici 

Stu time; 

\k;i1 cr Ru(iim'cluents: LOvv 
1,,vposarc: Sun 

Caryopteris x clandonensis 'Blue Mist' 	 Spirea, Blue Mist 

I la ril■ 	I 	: 

Narrow, orayish-;oenn eve Gflstrf: slender stems, lont s tightly roundect shrub. Custer ,, o Tonalif blue flowers bloom in he :ezif cdxiiG 

&irinQ ink; to late Summer. Cr) 	Cu t had,  to the Crown bc,forE,  $prinu growth AnIerrie:-.:. 

Slide Comment 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 Password: 

0 Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

+ Lin. VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 the Reeky Nankin Skuutad- 

73021 E. Moth Aro. Ekkfilon CO 80601 r3o.) 6594708 ‘3001 221-3241 Fax (3031659.6886 

https://www.lywn.com/yiewslideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014  5:54:53 PM] 



Member Log In 

Availability 

Yarrow, Moonshine Achillea 'Moonshine' 

Flower Color: Light Yellow 
Flower Season: Summer 

lliilurc ileighi: 24-30" 
Mature spread: 18-24" 

!brill', o: 9,000' 

suer Requirements: Low 
Exposure: Sun 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

User Name: 
	

Password: 

❑ Remember User Name 

Flat-topped clusters of sulfur yellow flowers stand above finely dissected, grayish-green Foliage throughout the summer. 

Slide Common 

Log 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 As Rocky "bundle Vended"' 

13022E. 13641r Afro. Brighton CO 80601 (303) 659-6708 (800) 221-3241 Fax (303) 659-6886 

https://www.lvwn.com/yiewslide  show.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 5:50:52 PM] 



271 CHURCH STREET – 

PEH ARCHITECT SCOPE 

OF WORK AND FEE 

PROPOSAL 



 
CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: February 26, 2014 

 

SUBJECT:  

PEH Architectural Fees for 271 Church Street 

This is a request to approve PEH architectural/consultant construction fees for the preservation 

easement and rehabilitation grant scope of work at 271 Church Street.  This approval will allow PEH 

Architects and their consultants to complete the design and provide construction administration services 

for the previously approved scope of work.   

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

On May 22, 2013, City Council approved the initial scope of work for 271 Church Street.  PEH 

Architects has provided a proposal for design and construction administration services.  The 

Community Planning & Development Department and the Owner’s Representative have reviewed 

PEH’s proposal and requested certain revisions to the original proposal based on the project scope, 

which have been incorporated into the submitted proposal.  The proposal does not include plumbing or 

electrical engineer consultants or an interior designer due to the limited scope of the work.  

Additionally, the submitted proposal will be billed on a Time & Materials basis with a Not to Exceed 

top set which will allow the City to accurately track consultant costs. 

 

The attached proposal outlines the scope of work PEH and their consultants will perform as the design 

team for this rehabilitation project.   PEH has analyzed the project and estimated the fee amounts 

utilizing the same fee structure approach as previous rehabilitation projects.  Although PEH’s hourly 

rates have increased as of January 1, 2014, the currently proposed rates are per the 2013 fee structure. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE the PEH Architectural Fees for 

271 Church Street. 

 

RESOLUTION DATE:     February 26, 2014 

 

ORIGINATED BY: Community Planning and Development 

 

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Cynthia L. Linker  

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: PEH Scope of Work with Architectural 

Fees 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:     [ ] Yes     [X] No     [  ] N/A 

INITIALS__________ 

 

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY: 

      

Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D     Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 



PEH ARCHITECTS
PROJECT FEE ESTIMATE -HOURLY BASIS

9/17/2013
REVISED 1/10/14
REVISED 2/18/14

Historic Grant Rehabilitation
271 Church - Larkins
Black Hawk, CO

TASK DESCRIPTION PEH Proj. Mgr. Senior CAD Junior CAD Ttl. Hrs. Hourly Remarks

Rate: $135 $105 $90 $75 Total

Pre-design and administration services:
Scope Review Meetings 0 4 0 0 4 Includes travel time

Initial Site Visit walk through 0 4 0 0 4 Includes travel time

Site visit for As-Built Measurements 0 0 4 4 8 As-Built existing conditions

As-Built Drafting 0 2 6 6 14 Draft existing plans and elevations

Scope development 0 0 0 0 0 no charge

Concept sketches 0 6 0 6 12 1/8" scale sketches

Concept Plan Review Meeting 0 0 0 0 0 reduced services

0 16 10 16 42
$0 $1,680 $900 $1,200

PRE-DESIGN AND ADMINISTRATION SERVICES $3,780

Document research, design development, drafting, specifications and coordination with consultants:

1. Repoint painted brick foundation wall.  Replace crumbling brick 
and soft mortar wall. 0 1 2 2 5 Coord. w/ consulting engr.

2. Install new gutters and downspouts at eaves. 0 2 1 1 4
3. Install/replace soffit vents. (no ventilation calculation requested - 
only infill existing holes). 0 1 0 1 2
4. Install ornamental metal guardrail at street-side stone retaining 
walls. 0 1 2 2 5

5. Install wire metal fencing along the east and west property lines.
0 1 2 2 5

6. Paint stone retaining wall below porch. 0 1 0 1 2 Coord. w/ consulting engr.

7. Repair existing concrete drainage swale at north side of house.
0 3 1 1 5

8. Add earth fill where missing. Provide native grass seed. 0 2 1 2 5

9. Extend length of stone retaining wall under wood deck stairs.
0 3 3 3 9

10. Reconstruct & Increase height of stone retaining wall under 
wood deck stairs. 0 3 3 3 9
11. Repair or reconstruct stone retaining wall behind, north of, 
house. 0 2 2 2 6
12. Scrape, caulk, prime and paint all exterior siding/trim – Match 
existing 4 color scheme. 0 2 3 3 8
13. Install storm doors at three exterior doors. 0 1 0 1 2
14. Replace fascia at east gable with gingerbread to match south 
gable. 0 1 1 1 3
15. Design access doors to existing cased openings.  (upper 
bathroom & below stairs) 0 1 0 2 3
16. Design cased opening & access door to framed opening over 
stairs. 0 1 0 1 2
17. Design attic access opening at second floor. 0 1 0 1 2
18. Design crown molding at first floor. 0 0 1 1 2

19. Design additional cabinetry in kitchen, dining and laundry room.
0 2 2 4 8

use standard cab spec. - provide generic 
finish selection and design layout. - 
pricing not included

20. Replace kitchen countertops; install new countertops at new 
cabinets. 0 0 1 1 2
21. Select new hardware for existing and new cabinetry. 0 0 0 0 0 reduced services

22. Design casing trim to gyp wrapped opening between kitchen 
and hall. 0 1 0 1 2
23. Design tile flooring and base trim over existing concrete floor 
slab in laundry. 0 1 0 1 2

24. Replace kitchen backsplash at new and existing countertops.
0 2 1 2 5

25. Repaint interior walls in work areas of kitchen. 1 1 2
26. Install gas stub at covered porch for exterior bbq grill. 0 0 0 1 1 Assumed no engineering

27. Install light fixture at front porch (switch and J-box are existing).
0 1 0 1 2 Assumed no engineering

28. Add code compliant electrical outlets at added cabinetry in the 
kitchen 0 2 1 1 4 Assumed no engineering

29. Install storm door to exterior door. 0 0 0 1 1
Update drawings after full demo of interior finishes 0 0 0 0 0 Hourly if provided after DD

City/client review meetings 0 8 8 0 16 2 mtgs (at DD & CD review) 

City/client Interior design review meetings 0 0 0 0 0 reduced services

Pre-Bid Meeting with Contractors 0 4 0 0 4 Includes travel time

Clarifications/addendum to GCs during bidding 1 4 4 0 9
CONDOC update to include clarification/addendum items 0 0 0 0 0 reduced services

1 53 40 45 135
$135 $5,565 $3,600 $3,375

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS $12,675

Consultant CONDOC Services
Civil $4,092 Includes 2 site visit

Structural $0
Mechanical & Plumbing $0
Electrical $0
Masonry Expert $1,980 Includes 1 initial site visit

Interior Designer $0 reduced services

TOTAL CONSULTANT CONDOC SERVICES $6,072

Page 1



PEH ARCHITECTS
PROJECT FEE ESTIMATE -HOURLY BASIS

9/17/2013
REVISED 1/10/14
REVISED 2/18/14

Historic Grant Rehabilitation
271 Church - Larkins
Black Hawk, CO

TASK DESCRIPTION PEH Proj. Mgr. Senior CAD Junior CAD Ttl. Hrs. Hourly Remarks

Rate: $135 $105 $90 $75 Total

BREAK GROUND

Architectural Construction Administration Phase
Pre-construction OAC mtg. 0 4 0 0 4 includes travel time

Shop drawing & product reviews 1 8 8 8 25
Site observations - every other week 8 32 0 0 40 4 hr visit includes travel. 8 visits

Field Reports 0 8 8 8 24
Clarifications/SK dwgs to GC if req'd 0 0 0 0 0 To be hourly if requested

9 52 16 16 93
$1,215 $5,460 $1,440 $1,200

TOTAL ARCH. CONSTRUCTION ADMIN. PHASE $9,315

Consultant Construction Administration Services
Civil $1,430 Includes 2 site visits

Structural $0
Mechanical & Plumbing $0
Electrical $0
Interior Designer $0 No CA services

TOTAL CONSULTANT CONST. ADMIN. SERVICES $1,430

Project Closeout
Final Punch List 6 6 0 2 14 Incl. travel time/excludes record dwgs

$810 $630 $0 $150
TOTAL PROJECT CLOSEOUT $1,590

Reimbersable allowance $660 Plots, prints, USPS

Mileage allowance $694 16 Trips of 70 miles at $0.62 per mile

TOTAL REIMBERSABLE ALLOWANCE $1,354

Additional Services (a-la-carte) to be provided as Add-Alternates to base design:

30. Design one alternative exterior 4-color paint scheme (includes 1 
exterior color rendering). $1,460 1 color 2D elev. w/ paint samples

31. not used $0
32. Design new stone retaining wall at east rear yard. $2,400 Civil engineering SK-sketch

33. Design new stone retaining wall at west rear yard. $2,400 Civil engineering SK-sketch

34. Omit civil engineering services and coordination. ($6,512) Deduct from base contract

(arch CONDOC #8, #11, civil CONDOC, Civil CA)

Notes in regard to reduced services:

12) This contract can be offered as a Time and Materials basis, not to exceed the fees listed above.  Please note that PEH ARCHITECTS hourly rates have increased at the beginning of the 2014 
calendar year due to professional advancement, however we will continue to hold the hourly rates as quoted on this proposal originally prepared on 9/17/2013.

2) Omit the SD  review meeting.  We will provide two review meetings; one at DD (50% complete) and one at the CD  (90% complete) stage in which we will review the design and specifications. 
3) Omit the SD submission set of drawings.  Design progress drawings will be provided at the DD set and CD set.  A follow-up set of drawings will be provided after the CD review set (titled: Bid and 
Permit).
4) Omit the construction submission set.
5) Omit the record drawings set. The GC’s as-builts will be utilized as the record set.
6) Omit structural engineer services.  No structural engineering to be provided to the masonry walls that support the house.  Primarily the repairs are to be cosmetic.  
7) Site retaining walls to be constructed, reconstructed or repair to follow City of Black Hawk standard design engineering and detailing.  Additional engineering for tall walls is excluded.  Should 

1) Omit the Concept review meeting.  Any conceptual sketches in regard to the site design and interior kitchen/dining can be addressed via e-mail.  I also believe that some of these design decisions 
could be kept internal between the owner’s rep, historic architect and architect.

8) Electrical engineering will not be included.  Electrical improvements are minor in nature and shall be coordinated between the GC/Sub and Inspector. General noting on the bid documents will be 
provided.
9) Plumbing engineering will not be included.  Plumbing improvements are minor in nature and shall be coordinated between the GC/Sub and inspector.  General noting on the bid documents will be 
provided.
10) It is the owners responsibility to select all interior finishes and colors.  Coordination in  regard to cost/budget allowances to be provided by the CoBH or it's contractors.  Owner provided interior finishes 
will be included in the construction drawings & specifications.   Owner shall provide all specifications in written format to be "copy/paste" into the project manual.  There will be no interior design review 
meetings provided by the architect or its team.
11) Should the owner decide to omit the civil engineering services (item #34.), the architect & its team will design to within 5'-0" of the building.  Architect will provide schematic site planning, however 
coordination of the civil engineer's drawings will not be provided by the architect or it's team.

Page 2



RESOLUTION 12-2014, A 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 

THE JUDGES SELECTED 

TO SERVE FOR THE 

REGULAR MUNICIPAL 

ELECTION IN THE CITY 

OF BLACK HAWK ON 

APRIL 1, 2014 



  

 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 

COUNTY OF GILPIN 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 

Resolution No.  12- 2014 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE JUDGES SELECTED TO SERVE FOR 

THE REGULAR MUNICIPAL ELECTION IN THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

ON APRIL 1, 2014. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF   

BLACK HAWK COLORADO THAT: 

 

 The Board of Aldermen hereby approves the appointment of, Lynnette Hailey, 

Thomas Gish, Larry Linker, Dolores Spellman, Dana Acher, Cinda Moore, and John 

Kittredge as Election Judges to serve respectively for the Regular Municipal Election to 

be held April 1, 2014. 

 

 

 DATED, at Black Hawk, Colorado, this 26th day of February, 2014. 

 

 

 

 _________________________________ 

 David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jeanie M. Magno, CMC, City Clerk  


	Agenda.pdf
	Approval of Minutes for Feb. 12, 2014.pdf
	Res. 10, Approving C of A for Exterior Rehabilitation of Historic Outbuildins & Site Work for 101 Marchant.pdf
	Res. 11 Conditionally Approving a C of A for Site Work, Landscape & Construction of New Greenhouse for 301 Chase.pdf
	271 Church St. - PEH Scope of Work & Fee Proposal.pdf
	Res. 12, Approving Judges for Regular Municipal Election on April 1, 2014.pdf

